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Health and safety 

Toilets – The toilets are located outside of the chamber, directly down the hall on the right. 
 
Evacuation – Should there be an evacuation for any reason please exit down the stairwell to the 
assembly point, which is the entrance to the carpark on Spey Street. Please do not use the lift. 
 
Earthquake – Drop, cover and hold applies in this situation and, if necessary, once the shaking has 
stopped we will evacuate down the stairwell without using the lift, meeting again in the carpark on 
Spey Street. 
 
Phones – Please turn your mobile devices to silent mode. 
 
Recording - These proceedings are being recorded for the purpose of live video, both live streaming 
and downloading.  By remaining in this meeting, you are consenting to being filmed for viewing by 
the public. 
 
  



 

 

Terms of Reference – Finance and Assurance Committee 
 

TYPE OF COMMITTEE Council standing committee 

RESPONSIBLE TO Council 

SUBCOMMITTEES None 

LEGISLATIVE BASIS Committee constituted by Council as per schedule 7, clause 30 (1)(a), 
LGA 2002.  
Committee delegated powers by Council as per schedule 7, clause 
32, LGA 2002. 

MEMBERSHIP The mayor, all councillors and one external appointee. 

FREQUENCY OF 
MEETINGS 

Quarterly or as required 

QUORUM Seven members 

SCOPE OF ACTIVITIES The Finance and Assurance committee is responsible for: 
• ensuring that Council has appropriate financial, risk 

management and internal control systems in place that provide: 
- an overview of the financial and non-financial 

performance of the organisation 
- effective management of potential opportunities and 

adverse effects 
- reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of 

Council’s financial and non-financial reporting.   
• exercising active oversight of information technology systems   
• exercising active oversight of Council’s health and safety 

policies, processes, compliance, results and frameworks 
• relationships with external, internal auditors, banking 

institutions and insurance brokers. 
The Finance and Assurance committee will monitor and assess the 
following: 
• the financial and non-financial performance of Council against 

budgeted and forecasted outcomes 
• consideration of forecasted changes to financial outcomes 
• Council’s compliance with legislative requirements 
• Council’s risk management framework 
• Council’s control framework 
• Council’s compliance with its treasury responsibilities 
•   Council’s compliance with its Fraud Policy. 

DELEGATIONS The Finance and Assurance committee shall have the following 
delegated powers and be accountable to Council for the exercising 
of these powers.   
In exercising the delegated powers, the Finance and Assurance 
committee will operate within:  
• policies, plans, standards or guidelines that have been 

established and approved by Council 



 

 
  

 

• the overall priorities of Council 
• the needs of the local communities  
• the approved budgets for the activity. 
The Finance and Assurance committee will have responsibility and 
delegated authority in the following areas: 
Financial and performance monitoring 
a) monitoring financial performance to budgets 
b) monitoring service level performance to key performance 

indicators. 
Internal control framework 
a) reviewing whether Council’s approach to maintaining an 

effective internal control framework is sound and effective 
b) reviewing whether Council has taken steps to embed a culture 

that is committed to probity and ethical behaviour 
c) reviewing whether there are appropriate systems, processes and 

controls in place to prevent, detect and effectively investigate 
fraud. 

Internal reporting 
a) to consider the processes for ensuring the completeness and 

quality of financial and operational information being provided 
to Council 

b) to seek advice periodically from internal and external auditors 
regarding the completeness and quality of financial and 
operational information that is provided to the Council. 

External reporting and accountability 
a) agreeing the appropriateness of Council’s existing accounting 

policies and principles and any proposed change 

b) enquiring of internal and external auditors for any information 
that affects the quality and clarity of Council’s financial 
statements and statements of service performance, and assess 
whether appropriate action has been taken by management in 
response to the above 

c) satisfying itself that the financial statements and statements of 
service performance are supported by appropriate 
management signoff on the statements and on the adequacy 
of the systems of internal control (ie letters of representation), 
and recommend signing of the financial statements by the 
chief executive/mayor and adoption of the Annual Report, 
Annual Plans, Long Term Plans 

Risk management 
a) reviewing whether Council has in place a current, 

comprehensive and effective risk management framework and 
associated procedures for effective identification and 
management of the Council’s significant risks 

b) considering whether appropriate action is being taken to 
mitigate Council’s significant risks. 



 

 

Health and safety 
a) review, monitor and make recommendations to Council on 

the organisations health and safety risk management 
framework and policies to ensure that the organisation has 
clearly set out its commitments to manage health and safety 
matters effectively. 

b) review and make recommendations for Council approval on 
strategies for achieving health and safety objectives 

c) review and recommend for Council approval targets for 
health and safety performance and assess performance against 
those targets 

d) monitor the organisation’s compliance with health and safety 
policies and relevant applicable law 

e) ensure that the systems used to identify and manage health 
and safety risks are fit for purpose, being effectively 
implemented, regularly reviewed and continuously improved.  
This includes ensuring that Council is properly and regularly 
informed and updated on matters relating to health and safety 
risks 

f) seek assurance that the organisation is effectively structured to 
manage health and safety risks, including having competent 
workers, adequate communication procedures and proper 
documentation 

g) review health and safety related incidents and consider 
appropriate actions to minimise the risk of recurrence 

h) make recommendations to Council regarding the 
appropriateness of resources available for operating the health 
and safety management systems and programmes 

i) any other duties and responsibilities which have been assigned 
to it from time to time by Council. 

Internal audit 
a) approve appointment of the internal auditor, internal audit 

engagement letter and letter of understanding   
b) reviewing and approving the internal audit coverage and annual 

work plans, ensuring these plans are based on Council’s risk 
profile 

c) reviewing the adequacy of management’s implementation of 
internal audit recommendations 

d) reviewing the internal audit charter to ensure appropriate 
organisational structures, authority, access, independence, 
resourcing and reporting arrangements are in place. 

 
External audit 
a) confirming the terms of the engagement, including the nature 

and scope of the audit, timetable and fees, with the external 
auditor at the start of each audit 



 

 
  

 

b) receiving the external audit report(s) and review action(s) to be 
taken by management on significant issues and audit 
recommendations raised within 

c) enquiring of management and the independent auditor about 
significant business, political, financial and control risks or 
exposure to such risks. 

Compliance with legislation, standards and best practice 
guidelines 
a) reviewing the effectiveness of the system for monitoring 

Council’s compliance with laws (including governance 
legislation, regulations and associated government policies), 
with Council’s own standards, and best practice guidelines as 
applicable 

b) conducting and monitoring special investigations, in 
accordance with Council policy, and reporting the findings to 
Council   

c) monitoring the performance of Council organisations, in 
accordance with the Local Government Act.   

Business case review 
a) review of the business case of work, services, supplies, where 

the value of these or the project exceeds $2 million (GST 
exclusive) or the value over the term of the contract exceeds $2 
million (GST exclusive). 

Insurance 
a) consider Council’s insurance requirements, considering its risk 

profile 
b) approving the annual insurance renewal requirements 
Treasury 
a) oversee the treasury function of Council ensuring compliance 

with the relevant Council policies and plans 
b) ensuring compliance with the requirements of Council’s trust 

deeds are met 
c) recommend to Council treasury policies at least every three 

years. 
d) approve debt, interest rate and external investment 

management strategy. 
Fraud Policy 
a) receive and consider reports relating to the investigation of 

suspected fraud 
b) monitor the implementation of the Fraud Policy. 
Power to recommend 
The Finance and Assurance committee is responsible for 
considering and making recommendations to Council regarding: 
a) policies relating to risk management, rating, loans, funding and 

purchasing 



 

 

b) accounting treatments, changes in generally accepted 
accounting practice, and new accounting and reporting 
requirements 

c) the approval of financial and non-financial performance 
statements including adoption of the Annual Report, Annual 
Plans and Long Term Plans. 

The Finance and Assurance committee is responsible for 
considering and making recommendations to Council on business 
cases completed under the ‘Power to act’ section above. 

FINANCIAL 
DELEGATIONS 

Council authorises the following delegated authority of financial 
powers to Council committees in regard to matters within each 
committee’s jurisdiction. 
Contract acceptance: 
• accept or decline any contract for the purchase of goods, 

services, capital works or other assets where the total value of 
the lump sum contract does not exceed the sum allocated in 
the Long Term Plan/Annual Plan and the contract relates to 
an activity that is within the scope of activities relating to the 
work of the Finance and Assurance committee  

• accept or decline any contract for the disposal of goods, plant 
or other assets other than property or land that is provided 
for in the Long Term Plan 

Budget reallocation.   
The committee is authorised to reallocate funds from one existing 
budget item to another.  Reallocation of this kind must not impact 
on current or future levels of service and must be: 
• funded by way of savings on existing budget items 
• within the jurisdiction of the committee 
• consistent with the Revenue and Financing Policy. 

LIMITS TO 
DELEGATIONS 

Matters that must be processed by way of recommendation to 
Council include:  
• amendment to fees and charges relating to all activities  
• powers that cannot be delegated to committees as per the Local 

Government Act 2002 and sections 2.4 and 2.5 of this manual.  
Delegated authority is within the financial limits in section 9 of this 
manual. 

RELATIONSHIPS WITH 
OTHER PARTIES 

The committee shall maintain relationships with each of the nine 
community boards. 
Professional advisors to the committee shall be invited to attend all 
meetings of the committee including: 
• external auditor 
• internal auditor/risk advisor (if appointed) 
• chief financial officer.   
At each meeting, the chairperson will provide the external auditor 
and the internal auditor/risk advisor (if appointed) with an 
opportunity to discuss any matters with the committee without 
management being present.  The chairperson shall request the chief 



 

 
  

 

executive and staff in attendance to leave the meeting for the 
duration of the discussion.  The chairperson will provide minutes 
for that part of the meeting. 
The chief executive and the chief financial officer shall be 
responsible for drawing to the committee’s immediate attention any 
material matter that relates to the financial condition of Council, 
material breakdown in internal controls and any material event of 
fraud. 
The committee shall provide guidance and feedback to Council on 
financial performance, risk and compliance issues. 
The committee will report to Council as it deems appropriate but no 
less than twice a year. 

CONTACT WITH MEDIA The committee chairperson is the authorised spokesperson for the 
committee in all matters where the committee has authority or a 
particular interest. 
Committee members, including the chairperson, do not have 
delegated authority to speak to the media and/or outside agencies 
on behalf of Council on matters outside of the committee’s 
delegations. 
The chief financial officer will manage the formal communications 
between the committee and its constituents and for the committee 
in the exercise of its business.  Correspondence with central 
government, other local government agencies or other official 
agencies will only take place through Council staff and will be 
undertaken under the name of Southland District Council. 

 



Finance and Assurance 
Committee 16 October2024 

Page 10 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ITEM  PAGE 

PROCEDURAL 

1 Apologies 11 

2 Leave of absence 11 

3 Conflict of interest 11 

4 Extraordinary/urgent items 11 

5 Confirmation of minutes 11 

6 Public participation 11 

REPORTS 

7.1 Finance and Assurance Committee work plan for the year ended 30 June 
2025 25 

7.2 Internal Audit Terms of Reference - Review of the Request for Service 
System and the audit of the Stewart Island/Rakiura Visitor Levy 29 

7.3 Annual dog control report. 37 

7.4 Financial Report for the period ended 31 August 2024 41 

7.5 Draft unaudited Annual Report 2023/2024 59 

7.6 Analysis of Actual Results to Forecast for the year ended 30 June 2024 279 

7.7 Annual Plan 2025/2026 - Project timetable key dates 287 

7.8 Draft Accounting Policies for the 2025/2026 Annual Plan 293 

7.9 Changes to Significant Forecasting Assumptions for the Annual Plan 2025-
2026 309 



Finance and Assurance 
Committee 16 October 2024 

Page 11 

1 Apologies  

At the close of the agenda no apologies had been received.  

2 Leave of absence  

At the close of the agenda no requests for leave of absence had been received. 

3 Conflict of interest 

Committee members are reminded of the need to be vigilant to stand aside from decision-
making when a conflict arises between their role as a member and any private or other 
external interest they might have.  

4 Extraordinary/urgent items 

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass a resolution to permit the committee to consider any 
further items which do not appear on the agenda of this meeting and/or the meeting to be 
held with the public excluded. 

Such resolution is required to be made pursuant to Section 46A(7) of the Local Government 
Official Information and Meetings Act 1987, and the chairperson must advise:  

(i) the reason why the item was not on the agenda, and

(ii) the reason why the discussion of this item cannot be delayed until a subsequent
meeting.

Section 46A(7A) of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 (as 
amended) states:  

“Where an item is not on the agenda for a meeting,- 

(a) that item may be discussed at that meeting if-

(i) that item is a minor matter relating to the general business of the local authority;
and

(ii) the presiding member explains at the beginning of the meeting, at a time when
it is open to the public, that the item will be discussed at the meeting; but

(b) no resolution, decision or recommendation may be made in respect of that item
except to refer that item to a subsequent meeting of the local authority for further
discussion.”

5 Confirmation of minutes 

5.1 Meeting minutes of Finance and Assurance Committee, 04 September 2024  

6 Public participation 

Notification to speak is required by 12noon at least one clear day before the meeting. Further 
information is available at www.southlanddc.govt.nz or by phoning 0800 732 732.  

http://www.southlanddc.govt.nz/
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Finance and Assurance Committee 

OPEN MINUTES 
(UNCONFIRMED) 

Minutes of a meeting of Finance and Assurance Committee held in the Council Chamber, Level 2, 
20 Don Street, Invercargill on 04 Sep 2024 at 10am. (10.03am – 3pm ( 10.03am – 11.41am, 11.48am 
– 12.31pm, 1.03pm – 3pm) (PE 11.48am – 12.31pm, 1.03pm – 3pm).

PRESENT 

Chairperson Bruce Robertson 
Mayor Rob Scott 

Councillors Jaspreet Boparai 
Don Byars (11.07am – 3pm) 
Derek Chamberlain (MS Teams) (10.03am – 10.22am, 10.24am – 10.31am, 
10.33am – 10.38am, 10.41 – 3pm) 
Paul Duffy 
Darren Frazer 
Sarah Greaney 
Julie Keast (MS Teams) (10.03am – 1.19pm, 2.25pm – 3pm) 
Christine Menzies (10.03am – 1.50pm, 1.51pm – 2.32pm) 
Tom O'Brien 
Margie Ruddenklau (MS Teams) 11.03am – 3pm 
Jon Spraggon 
Matt Wilson 

APOLOGIES 

Councillor Byars for lateness 
Councillor Ruddenklau for lateness 
Councillor Menzies for early  departure 

IN ATTENDANCE 

Group manager finance and assurance Anne Robson 
Committee advisor Rachael Poole 
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1 Apologies 

Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor Byars and Councillor Ruddenklau.  An 
apology for an early departure was received from Councillor Menzies. 

Moved Chairperson Robertson, seconded Deputy Mayor Menzies and resolved: 

That the  Finance and Assurance Committee accept the apologies. 

2 Leave of absence 

There were no requests for leave of absence. 

3 Conflict of interest 

There were no conflicts of interest declared. 

4 Extraordinary/urgent items 

There were no extraordinary/urgent items. 

5 Confirmation of minutes 

Resolution 

Moved Chairperson Robertson, seconded Cr Duffy  and resolved: 

That the Finance and Assurance Committee confirms the minutes of the meeting held 
on 26 August 2024 as a true and correct record of that meeting. 

6 Public participation 

There was no public participation. 
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Reports 

7.1 Finance and Assurance Committee work plan for the year ended 30 June 2025 

Record No: R/24/8/53272 

GM finance and assurance, Anne Robson spoke to this report and explained that there had 
been two reports added to the workplan since the last meeting and two reports were 
moved from the September meeting to the October meeting.   

The update in regards to Southland District Council holdings in Milford Sound Tourism has 
not yet been completed, a new report will be added to the workplan around Council’s 
organisational reporting, with the frequency to determined.   

A People and capability quarterly update will also be added to the workplan. 

Chair also spoke about the Finance and Assurance Committee reviewing the risk profile of 
the Council in a structured way once he has had a discussion with key staff. 

Resolution 

Moved Mayor Scott, seconded Cr Greaney  and resolved: 

That the Finance and Assurance Committee: 

a) receives the report titled “Finance and Assurance Committee work plan for the
year ended 30 June 2025”

b) notes amendments made to the workplan for the year ended June 2025 since the
last meeting.

7.2 Year-End Performance Report - 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024 

Record No: R/24/8/52214 

Corporate performance lead, Robyn Laidlaw spoke to this report and explained that the 
purpose of this report was to provide the Finance and Assurance Committee (the 
committee) with the year-end performance report for the period 1 July 2023 to 30 June 
2024 (included as attachment A) for review and feedback. 

Councillor Duffy asked if leaks within the water systems are being detected and staff replied 
that detection of water loss is improving, but without having water meters installed on all 
connections there are still undetected leaks. 

Deputy mayor Menzies acknowledged the work of environmental services in improving 
their process and engaging with the public.   

The  Emergency Management Southland key performance indicators will improve once the 
new group manager is appointed and all staff vacancies have been filled. 
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Within the reporting including some nuance on those areas that have not achieved to show 
that they may be close to being achieved rather than showing as not achieved at the time 
the report is produced will give a truer overall picture. 

Chair Robertson pointed out that moving forward maintaining water compliance is going 
to become an issue under the current water standards. 

During discussion Cr Chamberlain left the meeting for the following times:  10.22am – 
10.24am and 10.31am – 10.33am. 

Resolution 

Moved Deputy Mayor Menzies, seconded Cr Duffy  and resolved: 

That the Finance and Assurance Committee: 

a) Receives the report titled “Year-End Performance Report - 1 July 2023 to 30
June 2024” dated 30 August 2024

b) Notes Councils performance against its KPI targets and the context provided for
these outcomes.

7.3 Risk management - September 2024 quarterly update 

Record No: R/24/6/38545 

Risk analyst, Jane Edwards spoke to this report and explained that the purpose of this report 
was to submit the September 2024 Quarterly Risk Management report for consideration by 
the Finance and Assurance Committee (the committee). 

The committee note that the Finance risk remains unassessed at a current (residual) 
threshold while executive leadership team continue to evaluate this new risk and the 
treatment options currently and potentially available to manage it. 

Questions around rates affordability modelling and that the modelling is from 2007.  The 
chair will speak with his colleagues to see if they are using a different model, but did say 
that the Shand report (2007) was a fairly standard approach to rates affordability. 

Discussion around the reorganisation of Council proposed by Mayor Scott and does this 
pose a risk?  There might be potential risks but at this stage it will  be keeping an eye and if 
risks emerge then dealing with them via the framework. 

Continue to engage as much as possible with central government around the roading 
funding shortfall to mitigate some of the risks associated with the decrease in funding. 

During discussion, Cr Chamberlain left the meeting at 10.38am and returned at 10.41am. 
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Resolution 

Moved Chairperson Robertson, seconded Cr O'Brien  and resolved: 

That the Finance and Assurance Committee: 

a) receives the report titled “Risk management - September 2024 quarterly
update”

b) notes those risks currently assessed as of significant issue for the September
2024 quarter.

7.4 Health and safety update 

Record No: R/24/8/53785 

Organisational health and safety manager, Dave McCone and GM people and culture, 
Joanne Davidson were in attendance for this report and explained that the purpose of this 
report was to update the committee on health and safety related events and activity over 
the last quarter. 

Councillor O’Brien requested if some of the training that is delivered to staff could also be 
made available to elected members, especially around de-escalation. 

During discussion Councillor Ruddenklau joined the meeting via MS teams at 11.03am and 
Councillor Byars joined the meeting at 11.07am) 

Resolution 

Moved Cr Greaney, seconded Deputy Mayor Menzies  and resolved: 

That the Finance and Assurance Committee: 

a) Receives the report titled “Health and safety update”.

7.5 Quarterly update to the Finance and Assurance Committee on progress for the 
Environmental Services Business Improvement Plan - 17a review 

Record No: R/24/8/54112 

Customer and business continuous improvement lead, Jane Johnstone,  building control 
team leader, Scott Belesky and GM regulatory services, Adrian Humphries were in 
attendance for this report.  The report was to update on the Environmental Services 
Business Improvement Plan and to consider changes to delivery dates.  

Preparation is underway for the upcoming International Accreditation New Zealand audit in 
February 2025. The building team were required to complete a strategic management 
review in August as part of accreditation, which staff provided the technical oversight for. In 
lieu of being able to find a permanent quality lead, building have engaged a contractor part 
time to assist the team until the February IANZ audit.    
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Three actions No 27, 26 and 32 have had new systems and reports developed and 
equipment purchased, so are now complete.   

Changes to completion dates are requested for three further action items, to address 
changes in personnel, discussions to occur with the new group manager and further 
identification of the work to be undertaken on property records is complete. 

Mr Belesky updated the committee on industry meetings and events held over the last 
quarter and shared that there has been a shift in perception from the industry that Council 
is working with them and not against them.  This will be tested when the customer survey is 
sent out at the end of the year. 

Mr Humphries spoke of the special interest group that is providing cross pollination training 
with other councils and building strong relationships with these Councils. 

Resolution 

Moved Mayor Scott, seconded Cr Frazer  and resolved: 

That the Finance and Assurance Committee: 

a) receives the report titled “Quarterly update to the Finance and Assurance
Committee on progress for the Environmental Services Business Improvement
Plan - 17a review”.

b) determines that this matter or decision be recognised as not significant in terms
of Section 76 of the Local Government Act 2002.

c) determines that it has complied with the decision-making provisions of the
Local Government Act 2002 to the extent necessary in relation to this decision;
and in accordance with Section 79 of the act determines that it does not require
further information, further assessment of options or further analysis of costs
and benefits or advantages and disadvantages prior to making a decision on
this matter.

d) notes that the following items have been completed in the last quarter:

Item 
No: 

Action 

27 Process Improvement – compliance Issue follow ups. Fully in place with 
reported KPI’s ensuring tracking and escalations (if required) are 
completed across the ES Groups, including new legal and compliance 
group. Work has also been completed to ensure customer facing online 
information matches to the processes.  

26 Quality based system. Various QA based options are in place to meet 
accreditation requirements. The longer-term prospect would be for 
SDC to decide on a formal QA system such as ISO 17020 (Inspection 
Body Accreditation Program) across all relevant departments.  
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32 Technology to improve efficiency and safety. Staff and leaders have 
defined requirements and where necessary have purchased 
additional gear e.g. PPE.   

e) Agrees to close the following actions

Action 
No 

Action 

9 Regional partners – common systems & processes.  Southern Cluster, 
Health Protect, and inter council opportunities such as compliance 
training day held recently by SDC support this opportunity and will be 
ongoing.  

10 Regional bylaws stocktake. Staff will continue to discuss and work 
with other Councils in this area as appropriate   

11 Regional partners – warrant officers.  A special interest group (SIG) of 
compliance personnel from ES, ICC, Gore DC and SDC has been setup. 
The inaugural meeting was held on 30 July to discuss how the councils 
can work better together and assist each other. This will be ongoing. 

f) Agrees to the following updated action delivery dates to reflect the work
needed to be undertaken, the priority of action items and the need to balance
improvements with ongoing day to day work

Action 
No 

Action Current 
date 

Revised 
date 

35 Customer service training. Pilot completed 
May 24.  Session 1 completed, however due to 
a staff movement, training has been delayed 
until a replacement can be found.  

July 24 Dec 24 

15 Items a) and b) are in progress with 
discussions occurring now that the GM 
Strategy and partnerships is on board  

September 
24 

Dec 24 

30 Property information stored in single 
location. This is ongoing with the next phase 
of record identification and planning 
underway.  One completed the size of the 
work can be identified and further 
information provided to the committee 
around completion dates. 

June 30 Dec 24 
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7.6 Finance transactional update as at 30 June 2024 

Record No: R/24/5/36779 

Transactional project lead, Shelley Dela Llana was in attendance for this report and 
explained that the report provided a snapshot of Council’s transactional activities to 30 
June 2024. 

Staff proud of the response to the combined approach with customer services around 
contacting those who have applied for the rates rebate previously and managed to increase 
the number of people receiving this. 

Staff were also able to email people after the rates due date and before the penalty was 
applied, this was a success and will be done again. 

Mayor Scott  and Chair Robertson shared their appreciation of the continuous improvement 
happening in this area.  Chair Robertson also asked that the committee is kept informed if 
Council is having to enact rating powers to collect outstanding debt as this could be a risk 
to Councils reputation. 

Chair Robertson also asked for the committees thanks to be passed onto the team for their 
work over the last year. 

Resolution 

Moved Chairperson Robertson, seconded Deputy Mayor Menzies  and resolved: 

That the Finance and Assurance Committee: 

a) receives the report titled “Finance transactional update as at 30 June 2024”.
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7.7 Balanced Funds Investment Review 

Record No: R/24/8/53380 

GM finance and assurance, Anne Robson spoke to this report and explained that the 
purpose of the report was to provide the Committee with information on the Milford Asset 
Management and Westpac (BT Funds Management) balanced funds and seek approval to 
invest the first quarterly instalment for the 2024/2025 financial year. 

To date four instalments haves been made, making a total of $20 million invested in 
Westpac and Milford. 

The total value of the investment is now $20,600,595. 

Resolution 

Moved Cr Greaney, seconded Cr Frazer  and resolved: 

That the Finance and Assurance Committee: 

a) receives the report titled “Balanced Funds Investment Review”

b) determines that this matter or decision be recognised as not significant in terms
of Section 76 of the Local Government Act 2002

c) determines that it has complied with the decision-making provisions of the
Local Government Act 2002 to the extent necessary in relation to this decision;
and in accordance with Section 79 of the act determines that it does not require
further information, further assessment of options or further analysis of costs
and benefits or advantages and disadvantages prior to making a decision on
this matter

d) Receives the investment and monthly transactional reports from Westpac
(BTFM) and Milford Asset Management as attached

e) Requests staff invest $5million evenly between Councils Balanced Investment
funds at Milford Asset Management and Westpac (BTFM).

Councillor Byars and Councillor Boparai voted against the motion.  Councillor O’Brien 
abstained from voting. 
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Public excluded  

Exclusion of the public: Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 

Resolution 

Moved Chairperson Robertson, seconded Deputy Mayor Menzies  and resolved: 

That the public be excluded from the following part(s) of the proceedings of this meeting. 

C8.1 Commercial infrastructure - Forest Management and Harvest Plan 2024/2025 

C8.2 Cyber security update - June 2024 to August 2024 

C8.3 FMIS Project Update 

C8.4 Follow up audit action points 

C8.5 Update on strategic property purchase investigations 

The general subject of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the reason 
for passing this resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under section 
48(1) of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of 
this resolution are as follows: 

General subject of each matter to be 
considered 

Reason for passing this resolution in 
relation to each matter 

Ground(s) under section 48(1) for the 
passing of this resolution 

Commercial infrastructure - Forest 
Management and Harvest Plan 
2024/2025 

s7(2)(h) - the withholding of the 
information is necessary to enable the 
local authority to carry out, without 
prejudice or disadvantage, 
commercial activities. 

That the public conduct of the whole 
or the relevant part of the 
proceedings of the meeting would be 
likely to result in the disclosure of 
information for which good reason 
for withholding exists. 

Cyber security update - June 2024 to 
August 2024 

s7(2)(e) - the withholding of the 
information is necessary to avoid 
prejudice to measures that prevent or 
mitigate material loss to members of 
the public. 

Disclosure of operational security 
information could lead to data 
breaches (financial, personal/public 
commercial information) or 
destruction of Council information 
technology systems and/or data.. 

s7(2)(j) - the withholding of the 
information is necessary to prevent 
the disclosure or use of official 
information for improper gain or 
improper advantage. 

Disclosure of operational security 
information could lead to data 
breaches (financial, personal/public 
commercial information) or 
destruction of Council information 
technology systems and/or data.. 

That the public conduct of the whole 
or the relevant part of the 
proceedings of the meeting would be 
likely to result in the disclosure of 
information for which good reason 
for withholding exists. 



Finance and Assurance Committee 
04 September 2024 

Minutes Page 23 

General subject of each matter to be 
considered

Reason for passing this resolution in 
relation to each matter

Ground(s) under section 48(1) for the 
passing of this resolution

FMIS Project Update s7(2)(b)(ii) - the withholding of the 
information is necessary to protect 
information where the making 
available of the information would be 
likely unreasonably to prejudice the 
commercial position of the person 
who supplied or who is the subject of 
the information. 

Commercial details. 

That the public conduct of the whole 
or the relevant part of the 
proceedings of the meeting would be 
likely to result in the disclosure of 
information for which good reason 
for withholding exists. 

Follow up audit action points s7(2)(j) - the withholding of the 
information is necessary to prevent 
the disclosure or use of official 
information for improper gain or 
improper advantage. 

That the public conduct of the whole 
or the relevant part of the 
proceedings of the meeting would be 
likely to result in the disclosure of 
information for which good reason 
for withholding exists. 

Update on strategic property 
purchase investigations 

s7(2)(b)(ii) - the withholding of the 
information is necessary to protect 
information where the making 
available of the information would be 
likely unreasonably to prejudice the 
commercial position of the person 
who supplied or who is the subject of 
the information. 

s7(2)(h) - the withholding of the 
information is necessary to enable the 
local authority to carry out, without 
prejudice or disadvantage, 
commercial activities. 

That the public conduct of the whole 
or the relevant part of the 
proceedings of the meeting would be 
likely to result in the disclosure of 
information for which good reason 
for withholding exists. 

The public were excluded at 11.40am. 

The meeting  adjourned at 11.41am for a refreshment break and reconvened at 11.48am. 

The meeting adjourned for lunch at 12.31pm and reconvened at 1.03pm. 

Councillor Keast left the meeting at 1.19pm and returned at 2.25pm during public excluded. 

Deputy mayor Keast left the meeting at 2.32pm. 

Resolutions in relation to the confidential items are recorded in the confidential section of these 
minutes and are not publicly available unless released here. 

The meeting concluded at 3pm. CONFIRMED AS A TRUE AND CORRECT RECORD OF A 
MEETING OF THE FINANCE AND ASSURANCE 
COMMITTEE HELD ON 4 SEPTEMBER 2024. 
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Finance and Assurance Committee work plan for the 
year ended 30 June 2025 
Record No: R/24/10/63952 
Author: Rachael Poole, Committee advisor  
Approved by: Anne Robson, Group manager finance and assurance 

☐ Decision ☐ Recommendation ☒ Information

Purpose 
1. To update the Committee on the status of the work programme discussed and agreed at the 4

September 2024 meeting for the financial year ending 30 June 2025.

2. As noted at the meeting the adoption of the work plan does not preclude the Committee or staff
from including additional reports as and when required.

3. As the year proceeds, the work plan will be updated to incorporate the actual dates reports are
being presented where that differs to the work plan adopted. For the committee’s information
the “X” in red shows the date the report was presented, where this differs from what was
approved in the work plan or if it is a new report that will be presented on an annual basis. If
there is a black “X” on the same line as a red “X”, the black “X” indicates the date agreed by the
committee. The “X” in green reflects changes identified to the ongoing work plan since it was
adopted. The “X” in blue reflects a report that has been removed permanently.

4. The procurement policy review has been moved from the October meeting to the December
meeting whilst further discussions are held with staff.

5. The Work programme for 2024/2025 incl projects c/f from 2023/2024 report was mistakenly
included in the timetable.  It is no longer required as its content is now covered in other reports.

6. A further report on the delivery of the project work programme for 2024-25 will be presented to
the committee at its December meeting.

7. Further to the last meeting, a new report, “Council organisation reporting” has been added to
December meeting.

8. The self assessment check will be conducted as a workshop.

Recommendation

That the Finance and Assurance Committee: 

a) receives the report titled “Finance and Assurance Committee work plan for the year
ended 30 June 2025”

b) Notes amendments made to the workplan.

Attachments 
A Finance and Assurance Committee Workplan to 30 June 2025 - 16 October 2024  
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Internal Audit Terms of Reference - Review of the 
Request for Service System and the audit of the Stewart 
Island/Rakiura Visitor Levy 
Record No: R/24/10/63041 
Author: Anne Robson, Group manager finance and assurance  
Approved by: Anne Robson, Group manager finance and assurance  
 
☒  Decision ☒  Recommendation ☐  Information 
 

   

 

Purpose 
1 To consider and agree the terms of reference for the sixth and seventh internal audits planned, 

relating to the audit of the Stewart Island/Rakiura Visitor Levy and a review of the request for 
service system. 

Executive Summary 
2 At the Committees 5 June 2024 meeting, the Committee agreed to the addition of three new 

internal audits to the internal audit programme, being 

- an audit of the Stewart Island/Rakiura Visitor Levy 

- a review of the request for service system 

- a review of the current document management system. 

3 The Committee also requested that staff contact the Office of the Auditor General (OAG) for 
approval for Deloitte to complete the review of the current document management system and 
the review of Councils request for service systems. This needs to be undertaken because Deloitte 
undertake our external audit. The OAG have provided guidelines for these circumstances. To get 
clearance, the audit/review being proposed must sit within the definition of assurance as per the 
OAG guidelines. 

4 Deloitte, have in drafting the attached scoping documents with Council, considered them in 
terms of the OAG guidelines and are comfortable that they sit within the definition of assurance 
and are therefore not a threat to Deloitte’s independence as Councils appointed auditor. Councils 
external Audit director, Mike Hawken, is also confirming with the OAG, we are awaiting a 
response. 

5 Attached for your review and consideration is the internal audit terms of reference for the audit 
of the Stewart Island/Rakiura Visitor Levy and the review of the request for service system. 

6 Deloitte have respectfully requested an increase to the fee for the review of the request for 
service system, due to multiple systems being used in Council to record requests.  They are 
unsure of the total cost until they start the work and have indicated that they will work to 
minimise the cost as far as possible.  As such we are seeking approval of up to an additional 
$9,000 to be funded from the District Operations Reserve, if required.  
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Recommendation 

That the Finance and Assurance Committee: 

a) receives the report titled “Internal Audit Terms of Reference - Review of the 
Request for Service System and the audit of the Stewart Island/Rakiura Visitor 
Levy” dated 11 October 2024. 

b) determines that this matter or decision be recognised as not significant in terms of 
Section 76 of the Local Government Act 2002. 

c) determines that it has complied with the decision-making provisions of the Local 
Government Act 2002 to the extent necessary in relation to this decision; and in 
accordance with Section 79 of the Act determines that it does not require further 
information, further assessment of options or further analysis of costs and benefits 
or advantages and disadvantages prior to making a decision on this matter. 

d) approves the internal audit terms of reference for the audit of the Stewart 
Island/Rakiura Visitor Levy and the review of the Request for Service system 
attached to this report. 

e) recommends to Council the approval of up to an additional $9,000 plus GST to 
complete the audit of the Request for Service system funded from the District 
Operations Reserve, if required. 

 

Background 

7 The committee appointed Deloitte as Council’s internal auditor in 2018. As part of the 
appointment the committee asked Deloitte to work with staff and the committee to form a three 
year internal audit work programme which was completed and agreed by the committee in 
September 2019. The agreed programme was for six pieces of work. To date, five have been 
completed. 

8 At the Committees 5 June 2024 meeting, the Committee agreed to the addition of three new 
internal audits to the internal audit programme, being 

- an audit of the Stewart Island/Rakiura Visitor Levy 

- a review of the request for service system 

- a review of the current document management system. 

9 The Committee also requested that staff contact the OAG for approval for Deloitte to complete 
the review of the current document management system and the review of the request for service 
system. This needs to be undertaken because Deloitte undertake our external audit. The OAG 
have provided guidelines for these circumstances. To get clearance, the audit/review being 
proposed must sit within the definition of assurance as per the OAG guidelines.   

10 Deloitte, have in drafting the attached scoping documents with Council staff, considered them in 
terms of the OAG guidelines and are comfortable that they sit within the definition of assurance 



Finance and Assurance Committee 
16 October 2024 

 

 

 
7.2 Internal Audit Terms of Reference - Review of the Request for Service System and the 

audit of the Stewart Island/Rakiura Visitor Levy 
Page 31 

 

and are therefore not a threat to Deloitte’s independence as your appointed auditor. Councils 
external Audit director is also confirming with the OAG, we are awaiting a response.  

11 With each internal audit undertaken, terms of reference are prepared by Deloitte. These outline 
the review to be undertaken, a background to the review, the scope of the review and the 
approach to be taken. 

12 As discussed with the committee previously, approval for each terms of reference will be sought 
from the committee before conducting each audit. 

13 The attached terms of reference are in relation to the sixth and seventh audit following audits 
completed on, procure to pay; cyber health check, contract management, project management 
and the prevention of fraud, corruption and bribery. 

14 The Stewart Island/Rakiura Visitor Levy review is to undertake an independent review of the 
collection of the levies in accordance with Councils policy. 

15 The review of the request for service system seeks to ensure Councils systems are fit for purpose 
and provide customers and council staff with the information required to respond and address 
issues promptly. 

Issues 

16 In reviewing the terms of reference, the committee needs to particularly consider if the objectives 
and scope meet the expectations of the committee.  This is the appropriate time to consider and 
amend the terms of reference if the committee believes it needs to be expanded or refined. 

Factors to Consider 

Legal and Statutory Requirements 

17 Section 101 of the Local Government Act 2002, financial management, notes in section 1(g), that 
a local authority must manage its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and general 
financial dealings prudently and in a manner that promotes the current and future interests of the 
community. 

Community Views 

18 The community wants to know that Council is undertaking its activities prudently. The internal 
audit function contributes to this by seeking assurance that Council has the proper controls, 
governance and risk management processes in place. 

Costs and Funding 

19 Council has an annual budget of $36,000 for the planned internal audit programme. This 
generally covers two audits per year.   

20 Council has previously agreed with Deloitte a budget of $18,000 plus GST and disbursements for 
each internal audit with the option to discuss with Council further if the audit is likely to incur 
additional costs due to its size or complexity.   

21 The audit of the Stewart Island Visitor levy is expected to cost $18,000 plus GST and 
disbursements.  But due to multiple systems used for recording requests for service, Deloitte has 
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respectfully asked to increase the potential audit fee.  Until they do the scope they are estimating 
between $20,000 and $27,000 plus GST and disbursements.   

22 Council currently has in its 2024-25 budget $61,612 plus GST for the internal audit programme.  
The $36,000 that was budgeted and unspent from last year was transferred to the District 
Operations Reserve and was not included in the carry forward and if required will be an 
unbudgeted expenditure request.   

23 The Committee has the option to agree or not to the request of Deloitte for an increased budget 
for the audit of the Request for Service system.  Should the Committee not agree to the increase, 
Deloitte director, David Seath will be at the meeting and it would be good to discuss the terms of 
reference as to the extent of work completed.   

24 After the completion of this audit, Council has three remaining pieces of work to be completed 
being, 

- asset management, is asset creation appropriately managed and monitored to ensure asset 
goals are met? Are disposals processed in an appropriate manner? 

- information integrity, how good and useful is the data accessible to management.  Are 
reports timely? Are facts versus estimates/judgement clearly spelt out. 

- a review of the current document management system 

 

Policy Implications 

25 The committee, as part of its terms of reference are responsible for establishing and undertaking 
an internal audit programme. 

Analysis 

Options Considered 

26 The two key options are to accept, subject to amendments at the meeting, the terms of reference 
for the sixth and/or seventh audit, being the audit of the Stewart Island Visitor Levy and the 
review of the Request for Service system. 

Analysis of Options 

Option 1 – to accept, subject to amendments at the meeting, the terms of reference for the 
audit of the Stewart Island Visitor Levy and/or the Request for Service System. 

Advantages  Disadvantages  

• enables the internal audit to proceed in a 
timely manner 

• will result in the committee receiving 
independent feedback on the audit of the 
Stewart Island Visitor Levy and the Request 
for Service System and potential areas of 
improvement, as well as recognition of 
what is being done well. 

• if the committee felt that both or either of 
these were no longer an appropriate audit 
to undertake at this time, then the 
opportunity to undertake another audit 
now instead would be missed. 



Finance and Assurance Committee 
16 October 2024 

 

 

 
7.2 Internal Audit Terms of Reference - Review of the Request for Service System and the 

audit of the Stewart Island/Rakiura Visitor Levy 
Page 33 

 

Option 2 – to decline the terms of reference for the audit of the Stewart Island Visitor Levy 
and/or the Request for Service System. 

Advantages  Disadvantages  

• enables any amendments to the work 
programme requested by the committee to 
be undertaken. 

• may delay the internal audit programme. 

Assessment of Significance 

27 This issue is not considered significant in terms of Council’s significance policy. 

Recommended Option 

28 The recommended option is option 1 – to accept, subject to amendments at the meeting, the 
terms of reference for the audit of the Stewart Island Visitor Levy and/or the Request for Service 
System. 

Next Steps 

29 Advise Deloitte of the outcome of the committee meeting. 

30 Seek approval from Council for unbudgeted expenditure. 

31 Advise staff and Councils approved operators of the levy collection of the audits taking place and 
work accordingly with all parties over timing. 
 

Attachments 
A  Draft Deloitte Scope for review of Councils Request for Service System   
B  Draft Deloitte Scope of Stewart Island/Rakiura Visitor Levy Audit      
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Annual dog control report. 
Record no: R/24/10/64189 
Author: Carolyn Davies, Executive assistant  
Approved by: Adrian Humphries, Group manager regulatory services  
 
☐  Decision ☐  Recommendation ☒  Information 
 

   

 

 

Purpose  
1 Council is required to submit a report annually of statistics relating its application of the Dog 

Control Act, this is sent to the Department of Internal Affairs. These, along with the covering 
letter are attached. 

 
 

Recommendation 
That the Finance and Assurance Committee: 

a) receives the report titled “Annual dog control report.” which was submitted to the 
Department of Internal Affairs. 

 
 

 

Attachments 
A  Dog Control Report statistics - to June 2024   
B  s10A covering letter to DIA 2023/2024      
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Financial Report for the period ended 31 August 2024 
Record no: R/24/10/63540 
Author: Jo Hooper, Project accountant  
Approved by: Anne Robson, Group manager finance and assurance  
 
☒  Decision ☐  Recommendation ☐  Information 
 

   

 

Purpose 
1 To provide Council with an overview of the financial results for the two months to 

31 August 2024 by Council’s seven activity groups and corporate services, as well as the financial 
position and the statement of cashflows as at 31 August 2024. 

2 We have also added a section reporting on the current position of our investment and liability 
management thresholds as at 31 August 2024. 
 

Recommendation 
That the Finance and Assurance Committee: 

a) receives the report titled “Financial Report for the period ended 31 August 2024”. 
 

b) acknowledges an inconsistent decision, in that Council is not currently meeting its 
interest rate exposure thresholds for year four to year six due to the repayment of 
debt. Future debt will the tailored to align with the thresholds required.  

 
c) recommends Council consider this issue and any changes necessary when the 

Investment and Liability Policy is next reviewed.  
 

Attachments 
A  Financial report at 31 August 2024      
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Draft unaudited Annual Report 2023/2024 
Record No: R/24/10/62011 
Author: Robyn Laidlaw, Corporate performance lead  
Approved by: Anne Robson, Group manager finance and assurance  
 
☒  Decision ☐  Recommendation ☐  Information 
 

   

 

Purpose 
1 The purpose of this report is for the Finance and Assurance committee (the committee) to 

provide feedback and endorse the release of the draft annual report (annual report) for the year 
ended 30 June 2024 for audit. 

Executive summary 
2 Council is required to develop and adopt an annual report within four months of the end of a 

financial year. The annual report compares and comments on the performance of Council against 
the budget and operating targets set in the 2023/2024 Annual Plan. As a result of the delays to 
the Long Term Plan, the Government has extended the timing to deliver the Annual Report to 
the end of December 2024. 

3 Development of Council’s annual report for the 2023/2024 financial year is nearing completion 
and a draft as at the date of this report is included as Attachments A, B and C. Please note that at 
this stage the document is still very much a working draft, with reviewing of the whole document 
ongoing. Any content which is yet to be finalised is shown in yellow highlighting. Any significant 
changes which occur subsequent to this report will be discussed with the committee at the 
meeting. 

4 The committee is asked to consider and endorse the draft unaudited annual report subject to any 
changes discussed and agreed during the meeting and endorse its release to Deloitte for audit. 

5 Following the audit, at the committees 4 December meeting, the committee will be asked to 
recommend that the final annual report be adopted by Council on 11 December. 

6 Deloitte are scheduled to undertake their audit fieldwork from 14 October to 15 November. 

7 Overall the draft annual report shows an operating deficit of $6.8m compared to the annual pan 
operating deficit of $9.2m deficit for the year ended 30 June 2024 before revaluations. Detailed 
information is provided in the financial results section. 

8 Staff have identified an error in the 30 June 2023 Annual Report, which saw $2.8million of vested 
assets included that should not have been.  A misinterpretation of paperwork between the 
property and financial team saw Luxmore land included as vested assets to Council.  Council staff 
have a meeting with Councils auditor Deloitte early next week to discuss the issue and the 
corrections needed.  At this time, it has been reversed out of this year, resulting in a larger deficit 
this year than what has occurred. 
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Recommendation 

That the Finance and Assurance Committee: 

a) receives the report titled “Draft unaudited Annual Report 2023/2024” dated 11 
October 2024. 

b) determines that this matter or decision be recognised as significant in terms of 
Section 76 of the Local Government Act 2002. 

c) determines that it has complied with the decision-making provisions of the Local 
Government Act 2002 to the extent necessary in relation to this decision; and in 
accordance with Section 79 of the Act determines that it does not require further 
information, further assessment of options or further analysis of costs and benefits 
or advantages and disadvantages prior to making a decision on this matter. 

d) endorses the draft unaudited annual report for the year ended 30 June 2024, 
including any amendments agreed at this meeting. 

e) approves the release of the draft unaudited annual report for the year ended 30 June 
2024 for audit, including any agreed amendments from this meeting. 

f) agrees to delegate authority to the Chief Executive and the Chair Finance and 
Assurance to approve any further amendments to the draft unaudited annual 
report for the year ended 30 June 2024 subsequent to this meeting, and prior to 
providing the draft to Council’s auditors. 

 

Background 

9 Section 98(3) of the Local Government Act 2002 requires the annual report for the financial year 
be adopted within four months of the end of the financial year to which it relates. The annual 
report is intended to outline Council’s actual performance in comparison with its intended 
performance as outlined in its annual/long term plan and includes the financial statements for 
Council for the year ended 30 June. 

10 The annual report details the operating activities of Council and includes financial statements for 
Council for the year ended 30 June 2024. This is the last Annual report related to the 2021-2031 
Long term plan. 

11 A copy of the draft unaudited 2023/2024 annual report is attached in three sections. 

• section 1, Executive Summary Attachment A 

• section 2, Council Activities Attachment B 

• Section 3, Financial Information Attachment C 

12 The committee are asked to review the draft and consider any risks/issues or changes that may 
be required to be incorporated into the document before it is released for audit. 

13 The draft unaudited annual report is scheduled to be audited by Deloitte on behalf of the 
Auditor-General from 14 October – 15 November 2024. Deloitte will be undertaking much of its 
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testing and fieldwork on-site during this time. Assuming there are no material issues arising at this 
point, the draft report is expected around 22 November 2024.  

14 Any changes, either resulting from the audit process or staff review, will be tracked and 
significant changes will be provided to the committee for confirmation at their meeting on the 4 
December 2024 prior to being adopted by Council. 

15 A summary of the annual report will also be prepared and is to be audited but is not required to 
be adopted by Council.  

Status of the report 

16 At the date of this report the draft unaudited annual report is substantially complete. Matters 
outstanding include: 

 The Mayor and CE statement at the beginning of the report is still to be completed.  

 completion of a small number of activity statement commentaries and final formatting is to be 
completed. 

 completion of a minor number of notes/components of notes to the financial statements 

 design of the full annual report document 

 compilation and design of the summary document 

 final review of the whole document. 

17 Any content in the draft annual report which is yet to be finalised, is shown in yellow highlighting. 

Organisational performance results  

18 At the committees meeting of the 4 September 2024 the committee received the report “year-end 
performance report – 1 July 2023 – 30 June 2024” and noted Councils performance against its 
KPI targets and the context provided for those outcomes.  

19 The draft annual report details performance of the organisation against the key performance 
targets as report on the 4 September, that were specified in the LTP 2021/2031. The mandatory 
measures in which Council is required to report on are included. 

20 Managers have reviewed the activities for which they are responsible and have provided 
commentary on the actual performance against targets, particularly in those instances where the 
performance targets have not been met. 

21 For Council’s 58 KPIs, the year-end results show that 40 (69%) were achieved, 14 (24%) were 
not achieved and 4 (7%) were not measured. The KPI’s that weren’t measured are part of the 
transport and emergency management activities, and were discussed at the September meeting. 

22 Of the 14 KPIs where the target was not achieved, reasons included recruitment, supply delays, 
budget constraints due to increased costs (particularly in roading) and an infrastructure network 
that has many assets needing repairs, maintenance or upgrades coming due at the same time. 
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GROUP  ACHIEVED NOT ACHIEVED NOT 

MEASURED 
TOTAL 

Community Leadership 3 - - 3 

Community Resources 8 2 - 10 

Environmental Services 5 2 2 9 

Stormwater 9 - - 9 

Transport 6 1 2 9 

Sewerage 6 3 - 9 

Water Supply 6 3 - 9 

Total 40 14 4 58 

 

Projects 

23 The draft unaudited 2023/2024 annual report includes information about projects, their 
completion status and actual cost versus budget. The projects include those programmed in the 
2023/2024 annual plan plus any projects carried forward from previous years or any new 
projects. This project information excludes the roading programme. 

24 The project list is extracted from an internal system as at 30 June 2024, 42% of projects were 
completed, 39% were in progress, 16% were not started, 3% were terminated. A list of projects 
not started are in section one, pg 20 – attachment A 

ACTIVITY GROUP PROJECTS 
STATUS 

COMPLETED IN 
PROGRESS 

NOT 
STARTED 

TERMINATED TOTAL 

Community leadership  - - - - - 

Community resources  49 32 17 1 99 

Corporate services* - 1 - - 1 
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Council has various corporate services that are considered internal activities. These corporate services are funded through internal 
charges which are spread over the seven activities. 

 

Financial results 

Draft financials of the Annual Report 2023/2024 
25 An ongoing review of the financial results is currently being undertaken and will be incorporated 

into the draft document. Any significant changes to the financial information detailed below will 
be discussed at the meeting. 

26 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Tier 1 PBE accounting 
standards.  

27 A summary of key financial information is set out below. An explanation of the key financial 
variances for each activity group is also detailed in the activity funding statement (FIS) 
commentaries in the annual report. 

Comprehensive Revenue and Expenditure 

ACTIVITY GROUP PROJECTS 
STATUS 

COMPLETED IN 
PROGRESS 

NOT 
STARTED 

TERMINATED TOTAL 

Environmental services - - - - - 

Stormwater 2 4 - 1 7 

Sewerage 4 15 - - 19 

Transport 3 4 6 2 15 

Water supply 10 7 3 - 20 

Total 68 63 26 4 161 
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28 The statement of comprehensive revenue and expense records the revenue received and the 
expenditure incurred by Council. It also records changes in the value of Council’s assets. 

29 Council has reported a draft operating deficit of $6.8m for the year ending 30 June 2024. This is a 
favourable variance of $2.4m compared to the annual plan operating deficit of 9.2m as outlined in 
the table below. 

Draft Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expenditure for 2023/2024 
ACTUAL 

 
ACTUAL BUDGET 

AP 
VARIANCE 

 
VARIANCE 

2022/2023 
 

2023/2024 2023/2024       
$M 

 
$M $M $M %   

105.5 Total operating revenue 109.7 102.8 6.8 6.7% Favourable 
114.3 Total operating expenditure 116.6 112.0 (4.5) (4.1%) Unfavourable 

0.4 Share of surplus from 
associates 

0.1 0.0 0.1   Unfavourable 

(8.4) Operating surplus/(deficit) (6.8) (9.2) 2.4 26.0% Favourable 

161.8 Gains on assets at fair value 101.8 104.5 (2.7) (2.6%) Unfavourable 
153.5 Total comprehensive surplus 95.0 95.3 (0.3) (0.3%) Unfavourable 

 

30 Total operating revenue was $6.8 million higher than the annual plan comprising: 

• rates revenue was $63.3million (annual plan $63.7million). This includes $0.4m rates penalty 
income. outlined in the table below. 

• NZTA Waka Kotahi was $21.3million (annual plan $19.2million). This favourable variance 
comprises $1.1million for pavement rehabilitation carried forward and $0.9million for school 
signage. 

• other revenue was $17.4million (annual plan $12.4million). This favourable variance 
comprises $2 million for Council’s share of WasteNet revenues which were not included in 
the Annual Plan, $1.8 million for forestry income relating to works carried forward and an 
adjustment to future harvesting schedules, and $0.5million from the Fiordland Housing Trust 
windup. 

• interest and dividends $0.7million (annual plan $1.9million). This unfavourable variance is 
due to the delay in the implementation of the balanced fund investments. 

• grants and subsidies $3.7million (annual plan $4.8million). This unfavourable variance 
comprises $2million relating to the deferred start of the ‘better off’ grant funding programme 
from DIA, partially offset by receipt of $1million in recovery funds relating to the Bluecliffs 
landfill site emergency event.  

• other gains and losses $2 million (annual plan $0.8million). This favourable variance 
comprises $1.9million relating to the Luxmore land sale and $0.5million for a sewerage 
insurance claim at Riverton, partially offset by a forestry revaluation loss of $0.6million and a 
loss of $0.4million relating to the sale of Matuku water assets to consumers. 

• vested assets $1.0million (annual plan $0.0m) are outlined in the table below. 

Draft Summary of Vested Assets for 2023/2024 
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  ACTUAL 
  2023/2024 
  $M 
Community resources* -2.8 
Community leadership 0.0 
Environmental services 0.0 
Transport 0.7 
Stormwater 1.3 
Sewerage 0.7 
Water supply 0.9 
Corporate services 0.0 
Total Vested Assets 1.0 

* $2.8m was incorrectly recognised in the prior year (2022/23) financial accounts which has been reversed. Finance to 
confirm with the Auditors prior year accounts need to be restated. 

31 Total operating expenditure was $4.5million higher than the annual plan comprising: 

o Employee benefits $18.7million (annual plan $20.1million). The variance is due to vacancies 
generated by the restructure and turnover.  With some positions outstanding for some time 
to ensure the best candidate. 

o Depreciation and amortisation $40.6 million (annual plan $37.9million). This unfavourable 
variance is due to actual inflation rates being higher than the annual plan assumptions. 

o Finance costs $1million (annual plan $3.3million). This favourable variance is due to lower 
than planned LGFA borrowings due to the delay in the implementing the investment strategy. 

o Other $56.3million (annual plan $50.8million). This comprises $6.7million in unfavourable 
variances (overspends), partially offset by $1.5million in favourable variances(underspends) 
as outlined in the tables below. 

Unfavourable Variances in Other Expenditure (Overspends) 
  2023/2024 

  $M 

Maintenance of sealed and unsealed roads to cover unbudgeted inflation increases 
in the three main maintenance contracts 

2.0 

Council’s share of WasteNet expenditure which was excluded from the Annual Plan 1.9 

Landfill remediation works due to the Bluecliffs landfill site emergency event 1.0 
External consultants due to vacant positions in the building solutions and resource 
management areas 

0.9 

Emergency roading reinstatement following the September 2023 flood event   0.6 
Electricity 0.3 

Total Unfavourable Variances (Overspends) in Other Expenditure 6.7 
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Favourable Variances in Other Expenditure (Underspends) 
  2023/2024 
  $M 
Investment Management Fee 0.4 
Resource Planning Spatial Plan 0.3 
Landfill contingency 0.2 
Fuel 0.2 
Better Off grants to external organisations 0.2 
Stewart Island Visitor Levy  0.2 
Total Favourable Variances (Underspends) in Other Expenditure 1.5 

Financial Position 

32 The summarised statement of financial position below outlines favourable variances against the 
annual plan for Council's Assets, Liabilities and Equity. 

Draft Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2024 
ACTUAL    ACTUAL  BUDGET AP  VARIANCE VARIANCE VARIANCE 
2022/2023   2023/2024 2023/2024       

$M 
 

$M $M $M %   
2,198.4 Total Assets 2,309.8 2,243.2 66.6 3.0% Favourable 

47.2 Total Liabilities 63.7 116.5 52.8 45.3% Favourable 
2,151.2 Total Equity 2,246.1 2,126.8 119.4 5.6% Favourable 

33 Total assets as at 30 June 2024 are $2,309.8million which is $66.6million higher than the annual 
plan and comprises.  This is principally due to the revaluation of Councils infrastructure.  

34 Total liabilities as at 30 June 2024 are $63.7million which is $52.8million lower than the annual 
plan principally as a result of less borrowings due to the delays in some capital projects and the 
investing of Councils unrestricted reserves 

35 Councils reserves are $43.7million (annual plan $38.1million). This represents an increase of 
$1million from the prior year as outlined in the table below.  The key variance in here is the 
increase in the district operating reserve. 

Draft Summary of Reserves as at 30 June 2024  
OPENING CLOSING MOVEMENT  

1 JULY 2023 30 JUNE 2024 
 

 
$M $M $M 

Council reserves – special 28.0 27.4 (0.6) 

Council reserves – general 11.4 12.7 1.3 

Restricted reserves 3.3 3.6 0.3 

Total Reserve Funds 42.7 43.7 1.0 

Interest has been allocated on the average reserve balance for the 2023/2024 year at a rate of 2.0% for the local 
and strategic asset reserves, 4.4% for restricted reserves, and 0.0% for all other reserves. 
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Cash Flows 

36 The statement of cash flows records the cash that Council received and disbursed. Broadly cash, 
under financial reporting rules is recorded in three separate categories: 

o operating cash flows - the cash flow related to day-to-day operating activities 

o investing cash flows - the cash flow received from sale of assets and cash spent on capital 
assets 

o financing cash flows - the cash flow received from any borrowings and the cash flow 
disbursed in repaying borrowings. 

37 Council’s cash position decreased by $6.7m during 2023/24 from $12.1m as at 30 June 2023 to 
$5.4 million as at 30 June 2024 as outlined in the table below. 

Draft Statement of Cash Flows for 2023/2024 

ACTUAL  ACTUAL BUDGET AP VARIANCE 

2022/2023  2023/2024 2023/2024  

$M  $M $M $M 

24.7 Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 24.3 27.6 3.3 

5.0 Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 14.0 27.3 13.3 

(26.5) Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (45.1) (53.6) (8.6) 

(3.2) Total Net Cash Flows (6.7) 1.3 8.1 

38 Net cash flows from Operating activities is $3.3m less than the annual plan which has resulted in 
the financial prudence benchmark relating to operations control not being met.  

39 Net cash flows from Financing activities is $13.3m less than the annual plan due to lower than 
planned LGFA borrowings as a result of the delay in the investment strategy. 

40 Net cash flows from Investing activities is $8.6m less than the annual plan due to delays in capital 
expenditure projects. A summary of capital expenditure by activity compared to the Annual Plan 
budget is shown in the table below. 

 
Draft Capital Expenditure for 2023/2024 

 ACTUAL BUDGET 
AP 

2023/2024 2023/2024 

$M $M 

Community Leadership   0.1 

Community Resources 3.4 13.1 

Vested Asset Adjustment (non cash) -2.8 0.0 

Corporate Services 0.2 0.8 

Environmental Services 0.0 0.3 

Sewerage 5.6 8.3 
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 ACTUAL BUDGET 
AP 

2023/2024 2023/2024 

$M $M 

Stormwater 2.3 0.8 

Transport 26.1 25.9 

Water supply  5.2 4.7 

Total Capital Expenditure 39.9 54.0 

41 The community resources capital expenditure budget included $5.6m for the office and buildings 
which has been carried forward to 2024/25. 

Financial Prudence Benchmarks  

42 Of the seven financial prudence benchmarks reported, Council has met five for 2023/2024 as 
outlined in the Financial Benchmark Performance table below. 
Draft Financial Prudence Benchmarks for 2023/2024  

ANNUAL PLAN  ACTUAL  PERFORMANCE 

YEAR 2023/24 2023/24 2023/24 

Rates affordability benchmark  7.6% 7.1% Met 

Debt affordability benchmark - net debt 56.2% 16.9% Met 

Debt servicing benchmark 3.2% 0.9% Met 

Balanced budget benchmark 91.7% 93.0% Met 

Essential services benchmark 109.4% 89.9% Not Met 

Operations control benchmark > 100% 87.9% Not Met 

Debt control benchmark < 100% 31.7% Met 

43 Council has not met the Essential services benchmark. Council did not meet this benchmark in 
the prior years of 2022/2023 and 2021/2022.  Council meets this benchmark if its planned 
capital expenditure on network services equals or is greater than depreciation on network 
services. 

44 Council has not met the Operations control benchmark. This is primarily due to cash flow timing 
issues which are expected to be temporary in nature.  This benchmark is met if Councils actual 
net cash flow from operations equals or is greater than its planned net cash flow from operations. 

Other Financial Matters of Interest 

Infrastructure revaluation 

45 The revaluation of roading and three waters assets has resulted in a $101.3m increase in value 
over the prior year as shown in the summary table. The roading revaluation was completed by 
Beca and the three waters revaluation was completed by Waugh. 

46 Council undertakes a revaluation of its roading and water and waste assets annually. The practice 
for the three waters has been to do a comprehensive review every three years and in the 
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intermediary years increase the values using standard industry indices. For roading, indices have 
principally been used annually because Council does not actively build or substantially renew 
some components of the roads on a regular basis and therefore does not have the information on 
which to base a revaluation. 

Draft Infrastructure Revaluation for 2023/2024 with prior year comparison 
ASSET GROUP REVALUATION 

2023/2024 2022/2023 

 $M $M 

Roading 89.6  140.7 

Three waters 11.7 24.8 

Total revaluation movement 101.3 165.5 

47 This year a price index increase was used for three waters valuation however this increase was 
tested against recent contracts completed by Southland DC to ensure these reflected what 
Council are experiencing in their local market and this revealed that the CGPI increase was in 
fact quite similar to rates in recent contracts. 

48 In undertaking the roading revaluation, SDC provided recent contract rates for surfacing 
completed, bridges constructed and footpath construction. These have been increased 
accordingly with the cost adjustment factor from the latest values for infrastructures cost indexes 
from the Waka Kotahi procurement manual. to bring them to June 2024 values. For the 
remaining rates, the rates used in 2023 have been increased with the cost adjustment factor from 
the latest values for infrastructures cost indexes from the Waka Kotahi procurement manual 
tools applied. The increases in value is in line with contract movements during the year (eg the 
price of bitumen). 

49 The roading valuation is completed within the live asset database and signed off by the valuer on 
17 June 2024. The final indices to 30 June are estimated by the valuer as some of these are 
produced up to three months after the end of the relevant period. With the audit starting in mid-
October there is a risk that the auditors perceive the indices used do not reflect the actual one 
published (ie not best information available). As the valuation is completed within a live database 
(and information has since been updated), the valuations are unable to be recalculated on the data 
applicable at 30 June. 

Infrastructure Depreciation 

50 In line with the revaluation increase, annual depreciation has also increased by $4.8 million (11%) 
as shown in the summary table below. 

Draft Infrastructure Depreciation for 2023/2024 with prior year comparison 
ASSET GROUP ANNUAL DEPRECIATION 

ACTUAL 2023/2024 ACTUAL 2022/2023 

 $M $M 

Roading  28.8 25.4 

Total three waters 9.4 9.0 
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ASSET GROUP ANNUAL DEPRECIATION 

ACTUAL 2023/2024 ACTUAL 2022/2023 

 $M $M 

• Stormwater (not funded) 1.1 1.1 

• Wastewater 5.0 4.7 

• Water Supply 3.3 3.2 

Total annual depreciation 38.2 33.3 

Forestry Valuation 

51 The forestry valuation was completed by Woodlands Pacific Consulting Limited. The valuation 
resulted in an overall increase in the forestry asset of $0.1m (1%) which is recorded as a gain in 
other revenue. 

Draft Forestry Revaluation for 2023/2024 with prior year comparison 
 FORESTRY VALUATION 

ACTUAL 2023/2024 ACTUAL 2022/2023 

Discount rate 7.5% 7.5% 

 $M $M 

Fair value of tree crop 13.3 13.4 

Land value 2.5 2.5 

Total Forestry Estate value 15.8 15.9 

The main factors driving the increase in $0.1m increase in value were: 

• increases for growth $1.5m 

• increase prices 0.1m. 

Offset by: 

• decreases for harvest $0.7 million 

• woodflow $0.9m. 
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Emissions Trading Scheme (ETS) 

52 Council recognises ETS credits on the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024. The 
statement reflects an asset, being the number of units held, multiplied by the value of the units at 
30 June 2024. ETS credits increased by $1.1m over the prior year. This is shown through the 
financial assets at fair value through other revenue and expense line of the statement of 
comprehensive revenue and expense. 

Draft ETS Credit with prior year comparison 
 ETS CREDITS 

ACTUAL 2023/2024 ACTUAL 2022/2023 

Units 113,231 109,673 

$ per unit $50.50 $41.75 

Total ETS credits $5.7m $4.6m 

53 In addition, 2.1 hectares of trees that have been harvested were not replanted at balance date 
(temporarily un-stocked). As staff expect the land to replanted during the 2024/2025 financial 
year, no allowance has been made for any deforestation liability $0.1m which would be incurred if 
the trees were not replanted within four years. 

Internal Loans 
54 Internal loans are $67.3 million as at 30 June 2024, an increase of $7.0m from the prior year as 

outlined in the table below. 

Draft Summary of Internal Loan Balances as at 30 June 2024 
  OPENING CLOSING MOVEMENT 

  1 JULY 2023 30-JUN-24   

  $M $M $M 

Community resources 10.9 8.9 -2.0 

Community leadership 0.1 0.0 0.0 

Environmental services 0.3 0.2 -0.1 

Transport 10.8 10.1 -0.7 

Stormwater 1.9 2.7 0.8 

Sewerage 19.3 24.4 5.1 

Water supply 15.1 19.3 4.2 

Corporate services 2.0 1.7 -0.3 

Total Internal Loans 60.3 67.3 7.0 

55 Interest was charged on internal loans at 4.35% in accordance with the Annual Plan. A summary of new 
loans against the annual plan is shown in the table below. 
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Draft Summary of New Internal Loans for 2023/2024 
  ACTUAL BUDGET AP 

  2023/2024 2023/2024 

  $M $M 

Community resources 1.9 11.1 

Community leadership 0.0 0.0 

Environmental services 0.0 0.0 

Corporate services 0.0 0.0 

Transport 0.4 2.5 

Stormwater 0.9 0.8 

Sewerage 3.2 6.8 

Water supply 4.1 4.1 

Total New Internal Loans 10.4 25.4 

56 New internal loans to Community Resources are substantially less than the annual plan partially 
due to $5.6m for office and buildings which has been carried forward to 2024/25. 

Factors to consider 

Legal and statutory requirements 

57 Section 98 of the Local Government Act 2002 requires Council to adopt an annual report within 
four months of the end of the financial year (30 October 2024). 

58 The act also requires Council to publish a summary of the annual report within one month of the 
annual report being adopted. Staff are intending to include the summary document in the 
information presented to the committee and Council in October 2024. The final audited 
summary document will be released in November 2024 once the annual report is adopted. 

59 Part 3 of Schedule 10 also outlines a number of disclosures that are required to be included in the 
annual report. 

Community views 

60 The community expects Council to adopt an annual report in accordance with the requirements 
of the Local Government Act 2002. The report is an important accountability document in terms 
of explaining the actual performance of the organisation relative to the objectives that were set 
via the Long Term Plan and Annual Plan. 

61 The annual report and summary (once adopted) will be made available to the public via Council’s 
website, by placing printed copies in libraries and service centres and having printed copies 
available for distribution on request. Availability of the report will be advertised. 

Costs and funding 

62 The total audit fee for the annual report is $187,883 (excluding GST) plus actual disbursements 
estimated at $17,000. This is an increase on the prior year of approximately 3%. Council allowed 
$202,300 for audit fees in its 2024/2025 budget. 
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63 Along with Council’s own review and quality assurance processes of the information in the 
annual report, the independent review undertaken by the auditors helps to ensure that the public 
can rely on the information provided. In general, auditors provide an opinion as to whether 
Council has complied with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) and that the annual 
report fairly reflects Council’s financial position, results of operations and cashflows, and levels 
of service and reasons for any variance. 

64 In relation to the financial aspects of the annual report, the financial results are not expected to 
change significantly, other than for those outstanding matters noted in this report. Staff will 
continue to focus on key disclosures such as post balance sheet events, contingencies and 
commitments in order to ensure that the most up to date information is provided to the auditors 
and disclosed where necessary. 

65 There are no additional financial considerations associated with deciding on whether to endorse 
the annual report. 

Policy Implications 

66 Council’s policies relating to the basis upon which the annual report is prepared are outlined in 
the Statement of Accounting Policies contained in the report itself. 

Analysis 

Options considered 

67 Under the Local Government Act 2002, Council must prepare and adopt an annual report in 
respect of each financial year, no other options are available. 

Analysis of options 

Option 1 – Endorse and release of the draft unaudited Annual Report 2023/2024 for 
audit, including any amendments agreed at this meeting. 

Advantages  Disadvantages  

• complies with Deloitte agreed timelines 
• committee has an opportunity to review the 

report and satisfy itself that the report has 
been prepared on an appropriate basis 

• committee approval can occur prior to 
releasing for audit 

• compliance with Council’s legislative 
requirements and Council’s committee 
delegations. 

• there are no disadvantages. 
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Option 2 – Do not endorse the draft unaudited Annual Report 2023/2024 

Advantages  Disadvantages  

• there are no advantages of this option. • Council will not be compliant with the 
legislation if the annual report is not 
audited and adopted by Council by 31 
December 2024. 

Assessment of significance 

68 The Annual Report 2023/2024 is considered significant under Council’s Significance and 
Engagement Policy because the performance of Council is of wide community interest. 

69 It is important to the public that Council meets both its financial and non-financial commitments 
to ensure it delivers its services efficiently and effectively. To do this the public relies on the 
information provided in the annual report to give it assurance that Council is undertaking its 
responsibilities and how well it is performing these. 

Recommended option 

70 The recommended option is Option 1 – Endorse and release the draft unaudited Annual Report 
2023/2024 for audit, including any amendments agreed at this meeting. 

Next steps 

71 The draft annual report and summary document will be finalised and graphically designed and 
then provided to Deloitte. 

72 Deloitte will then carry out their audit process beginning on 21 October 2024 before the final 
audited draft annual report is presented to the committee and Council at their meetings on the 
4 and 11 December 2024. 

73 Once the annual report and summary are adopted, and the signed representation letter has been 
provided to Deloitte, the audit opinion(s) will be issued to Council. The audit opinion will then 
be included in the final annual report and both the full document and summary document will be 
published online (December) with the printed versions available in mid January. 
 

Attachments 
A  Annual Report Section 1 Executive Summary   
B  Annual Report Section 2 Council Activities   
C  Annual Report Section 3 Financial information      
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Analysis of Actual Results to Forecast for the year ended 
30 June 2024 
Record No: R/24/10/63653 
Author: Jo Hooper, Project accountant  
Approved by: Anne Robson, Group manager finance and assurance  
 
☐  Decision ☐  Recommendation ☒  Information 
 

   

 

Purpose 
1. To compare the actual financial results for the 2023/2024 financial year against the final forecast 

budget approved by Council on the 1 May 2024. 

Background 
2. The actual results outlined in this report closely aligns with the draft Annual Report 2023/2024 

which is also presented at this meeting. However, this report compares actual results with forecast 
budget for 2023/2024 while the annual report will compare the actual results to the Annual 
Plan budget for 2023/2024. 

- 2023/2024 actual is the actual result for financial year ended 30 June 2024. 

- 2023/2024 forecast is the Annual Plan budget for 2023/2024 adjusted for the 
2022/2023 carried forward items (approved by Council on 20 September 2023) and any 
budget adjustments as a result of the April 2024 forecasting period (approved in May 
2024) which includes unbudgeted expenditure requests during that period. 

3. In summary the results are as follows: 

 2023/2024 
ACTUALS 

($000) 

2023/2024 
FORECAST 

($000) 

VARIANCE 
($000) 

VARIANCE 
% 

Income 109,678 106,560 3,118 2.9% 
Operating expenditure 116,597 114,143 2,454 2.1% 
Net surplus/(deficit) (6,919) (7,583) 664 (8.8%) 
Capital expenditure 39,916 53,049 (13,131) (24.8%) 

4. Explanations for the variances are outlined in the background section below. 

5. Please note that there is a difference in the numbers contained in the summary financial table above 
and the Profit and Loss report in paragraph 33 compared to the rest of the information discussed 
in the report. Both of these financial tables align with Council’s annual report which is based on 
accounting standards which eliminates internal transactions. Whilst internal transactions are 
excluded from the tables, they are included in the information provided in paragraphs 6 to 32.  
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Detailed analysis 

Income 

6. Overall operating income is $1.6 million (1%) more than forecast ($133.1 million actual vs $131.5 
million). The key reasons for the variances are detailed for each activity below. 

  
7. Community resources income is $1.6 million (-7%) below forecast mainly due to reversing the 

vested assets that were incorrectly added in the prior year of $2.8 million, offset by the 
government grant for Bluecliffs recovery of $920 thousand and SIESA income of $130 thousand 
due to higher interest rates and an increase in sales.  

8. Environmental services income is under projection by $444 thousand predominantly due to a 
decrease in building consent applications and a decrease in compliance monitoring income in 
environmental health as discussed during the year in Councils financial report. 

9. Stormwater income is $1.3 million over forecast due to accounting for vested assets of $1.2 
million. 

10. Water supply is $434 thousand over forecast due to the insurance claim for the Riverton water 
damage. 

11. Transport income is $896 thousand above forecast due to accounting for vested asst of $1 
million. 

Operating expenditure 

12. Operating expenditure is $1 million (1%) more than forecast ($140 million actual vs $139 million 
forecast). 
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13. Community leadership expenditure is $1.4 million under forecast due to the better off funding 

projects still being underway ($510 thousand), community and futures are $390thousand under 
forecast due to less expenditure on general projects, staff vacancies and lower legal fees. 

14. Community resources expenditure is $851thousand lower than forecasted. Parks and reserves are 
under budget by $606 thousand mainly due to maintenance not being required in parks and 
reserves to the level budgeted and a delay in starting on the Curio Bay master plan.  Streetscapes 
is under due to lower maintenance costs than expected in Te Anau and Colac Bay. Library costs 
are also under budget due to lower staff costs than forecasted. 

15. Environmental services expenditure is $1.1 million under forecast. The main variance is due to 
staff vacancies across the teams within this area. 

16. Sewerage expenditure is $223 thousand under forecast mainly due to interest costs being lower 
than previously forecasted due to the timing of capital projects. 

17. Stormwater expenditure is $245 thousand under forecast mainly due lower interest costs, and an 
underspend on the condition assessment budget.  At the start of the year, reactive maintenance 
was higher than expected.  It was decided to ensure that we stayed within budget that we reduce 
the condition assessments.  By year end this was not fully required. 

18. Transport expenditure is $4 million over forecast mainly due to the increased depreciation as a 
result of the increased revaluation of roading assets at year end. 

Capital expenditure 

19. Capital expenditure is $13.1 million (25%) less than forecast ($39.9 million v $53.0 million forecast). 
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20. Community resources capital expenditure is $10.3 million lower than forecast, including $2.8 

million for a vested asset adjustment (not shown in the graph above). The main variances include: 

 office and buildings are lower than budget by $5.4 million.  This is related to the renewal of 
the Invercargill office. This has been carried forward to the new financial year 

 streetscapes had a $2.8 million decrease due to reversing the 2022/23 vested assets as they 
were added in the prior year in error. 

 toilet capital expenditure is $889 thousand under forecast due to two of the toilet projects 
being completed under projection. The remainder of the projects which are still in progress 
are now expected to be completed in 2024/2025, with a related carry forward approved by 
Council 

 parks and reserves are $706 thousand under forecast with the majority of this being due to the 
delay in the Riverton playground renewal that will be carried forward into the next year, as 
well as other projects that were delivered under budget through the year 

 the bookbus fit out is under budget by $56 thousand.  The timing of the completion of this 
has been pushed into the new financial year due to supplier delays, with these funds carried 
forward. 

21. Corporate services capital spend is $847 thousand under forecast, the main variances are: 

 information technology spend was $490 thousand lower that budget due to a review required 
of the information technology server platform procurement strategy and the four yearly 
refresh for laptops and computer devices. Do to timing, some costs have been carried 
forward.  
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 community facilities are under budget by $100 thousand due to two work scheme vehicles not 
being replaced in the current year.  These have been carried forward. 

22. Sewerage capital spend is under forecast by $1.39 million mainly due to work that is underway 
with the infiltration upgrade package at Winton and Balfour, along with the Stewart Island rising 
main which required carry forwards. 

23. Stormwater capital spend is $1.1 million over forecast mainly due to vested assets received by 
Council. 

24. Transport capital costs are $1.0 million below forecast.  

 Bridge renewals are under forecast by $500 thousand due to the construction on one bridge 
still in progress.  The budget couldn’t be used elsewhere due to funding constraints 

 Minor improvements and pedestrian facilities are under budget with the school sign project 
that was delivered during June came under budget. All projects included in these activities are 
specific programme funded by NZTA any savings in these projects cannot be used to fund 
other activities. 

25. Water supply capital expenditure is $221 thousand under forecast as the multi-year projects are 
expected to have carry forwards. 

 

Projects 

26. The following table and graph relate to operational and capital expenditure identified as projects 
in Councils planning processes and their status as at 30 June 2024. The projects include those 
identified in the Annual Plan and additional projects identified for delivery during the 2023/2024 
year as a result of unbudgeted expenditure requests, carry forwards and the forecasting process. 

27. The below table shows the individual project statuses as reported in the annual report and does not 
include the entire roading capital programme. Project expenditure is a mix of operating and capital 
expenditure. 

 

INDIVIDUAL PROJECT (OPERATING AND CAPITAL) STATUS AT 30 JUNE 2024 

STATUS NUMBER OF PROJECTS ACTUAL EXPENDITURE 

                      $000 

FORECAST EXPENDITURE 

                   $000 

Completed 68 42.3% 17,400 46.1% 19,200 37% 

In Progress 63 39.1% 20,100 53.4% 32,200 62% 

Not Started 26 16.1% 142 0.4% 299 1% 

Deleted 4 2.5% 207 0.1% 108 0% 

Total 161 100% 37,700 100% 51,800 100% 

 

28. Specific details of the projects in progress, not started and deferred are included in the “Budget 
carry forward requests from 2023/2024 financial year into the 2024/2025 financial year” report 
presented to Council on 19 September 2024. 
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29. The graph below shows graphically, the actual project compared to the forecast spend by activity. 
A number of projects were split to occur over multiple years as part of the April forecasting 
round and many of these are shown as “in progress”. 

 
30. Community Resources projects are $7.8 million under, largely due to the Invercargill main office 

replacement ($5.2 million) which has been carried forward to the new financial year. Toilets at 
Mossburn ($300 thousand) Te Anau Lions Park ($200 thousand) and Athol ($163 thousand) in 
progress and carried forward. Riverton Taramea Bay Playground ($377 thousand) is in progress 
with physical works starting after winter. A further 40 parks and reserves are under budget for a 
total of $713 thousand.  Of these the majority has been being carried to forward to complete the 
work and $100 thousand has completed under budget.  

31. Sewerage was $2.3 million lower than budgeted largely due to the timing of works associated with 
three projects. Stewart Island/Rakiura sewer main renewal ($370 thousand), Edendale/Wyndham 
treatment plant ($300 thousand), and Balfour treatment plant upgrade ($900 thousand) have all 
been delayed due to consultation processes 

Statement of comprehensive income 

32. The actual versus forecast comparative statement of comprehensive income for the year-ending 
30 June 2024 is detailed below and the explanations above are the key reasons for the differences: 
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Recommendation 

That the Finance and Assurance Committee: 

a) Receives the report titled “Analysis of Actual Results to Forecast for the year ended 
30 June 2024” dated 11 October 2024. 

 

Attachments 
There are no attachments for this report.    

Actual Forecast Variance
2023/2024 2023/2024

($000) ($000)

Revenue
Rates revenue 63,282 63,693 ($411)
Other revenue 17,552 15,205 2,347
Interest and dividends 717 810 ($93)
Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency 21,266 21,707 ($441)
Grants and subsidies 3,752 3,383 369
Other gains/(losses) 2,022 1,759 263
Vested assets 1,050 - 1,050
Development and financial contributions 37 3 34
Total Revenue 109,678 106,560 3,118

Expenditure
Employee benefit expenses 18,656 20,102 ($1,446)
Depreciation and amortisation 40,600 37,856 2,744
Finance costs 1,019 785 234
Other council expenditure 56,323 55,400 922
Total expenditure 116,597 114,143 2,454

Surplus/(Deficit) before tax ($6,919) ($7,583) 664

Share of associate’s surplus/(deficit) 102 - 102
Income tax benefit - - -

Surplus/(Deficit) after tax ($6,817) ($7,583) 766

Gain/(Loss) on assets revaluations 1,219 - 1,219
Gain/(Loss) on property, plant and equipment revaluations 100,585 49,081 51,504
Total Comprehensive revenue and expense 94,987 41,498 53,489
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Annual Plan 2025/2026 - Project timetable key dates 
Record No: R/24/10/62013 
Author: Robyn Laidlaw, Corporate performance lead  
Approved by: Anne Robson, Group manager finance and assurance  
 
☒  Decision ☐  Recommendation ☐  Information 
 

   

 

Purpose 
1 The purpose of this report is to seek the approval of the Finance and Assurance Committee (the 

committee) for the Annual Plan 2025/2026 project timetable. 

Executive Summary 
2 The purpose of an Annual Plan is to consider and approve any variations to year two of the Long 

Term Plan 2024/2034 (LTP34). 

3 The project timetable outlines the key milestones to ensure that the Annual Plan is ready for 
approval by 30 June 2025. 

4 Staff are seeking the Committees approval for the proposed project plan, as detailed in the body 
of this report, noting a proposed change to a Committee and Council meeting dates in February 
2025.   
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Recommendation 

That the Finance and Assurance Committee: 

a) receives the report titled “Annual Plan 2025/2026 - Project timetable key dates” 
dated 11 October 2024. 

b) determines that this matter or decision be recognised as not significant in terms of 
Section 76 of the Local Government Act 2002. 

c) determines that it has complied with the decision-making provisions of the Local 
Government Act 2002 to the extent necessary in relation to this decision; and in 
accordance with Section 79 of the Act determines that it does not require further 
information, further assessment of options or further analysis of costs and benefits 
or advantages and disadvantages prior to making a decision on this matter. 

d) approves the key dates for the Annual Plan 2025/2026 as follows:  

KEY MILESTONE DATE NOTES 

Community Board workshops 7 Nov to 25 Nov 2024  

Council workshop to discuss draft Annual Plan  Nov 2024 Date to be 
confirmed  

Community board meetings - recommend variances and 
rates to Council 

3 to 17 Dec 2024  

Council meeting to receive the draft local and district budgets 
for Annual Plan 2025/2026 

29 Jan 2025  

Finance and Assurance Committee to recommend adoption 
of consultation document (if required) 12 Feb 2025 

Change of 
meeting 
date 

Council meeting to consider and adopt budgets (and 
consultation document if required) 

19 Feb 2025 
Change of 
meeting 
date 

Public consultation (if required) 
06 March to  
07 April 2025 

 

Council to hear annual plan submissions and deliberations (if 
required) 

15 and 16 April 
Two days if 
required  

Council workshop or Finance and Assurance Committee 
meeting – Draft plan for review 

14 May 2025  

Finance and Assurance meeting to recommend adoption of 
Annual Plan  

11 June 2025  

Council meeting - Adoption Annual Plan 25 June 2025  

 
e) requests staff make date changes for Finance and Assurance Committee and Council 

meetings as follows, 

- reschedule the Council meeting at 9.30am on Wednesday 12 February 2025 to 
9.30am on Wednesday 19 February 2025. 
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- reschedule the Finance and Assurance meeting at 9.30am on Wednesday 19 
February 2025 to 9.30am on Wednesday 12 February 2025. 

 

Background 
5 Every three years, Council develops and adopts a Long Term Plan. In the second and third year 

of the LTP, Annual Plans are developed to address any variations that occur. 

6 The purpose of an Annual Plan is to: 

• contain the proposed annual budget and funding impact statement 

• identify any variation from the financial statements and funding impact statement included in 
the 10 Year Plan in respect of the year 

• provide integrated decision making and co-ordination of the resources of the local authority 

• contribute to the accountability of the local authority to the community. 

7 Each Annual Plan adopted must contain appropriate references to the Long Term Plan and set 
out the (financial) information required by Part 2 of Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 
(“LGA”) which includes: 

• forecast financial statements 

• financial statements for the previous financial year 

• funding impact statement (rating) 

• rating base information 

• reserve funds. 

8 There is no requirement to consult if the Annual Plan does not include significant or material 
differences from the content of the 10 Year Plan. 

9 The community boards play an important role in reviewing and recommending the local budgets 
to Council as part of the Annual Plan process. We are engaging with community boards prior to 
any consultation (if necessary) that may be needed on the Annual Plan. 

10 Staff will be attending Community Board Annual Plan workshops during November 2024 and 
direction-setting meetings throughout December 2024 to confirm any variances from year two of 
LTP 34, to be included for consideration by Council in the Annual Plan 2025/2026. 

11 Below is a pictorial overview of the Annual Plan process.  
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12 A detailed timeline is outlined below. 

KEY MILESTONE DATE NOTES 

Community Board workshops  
7 Nov to 25 
Nov 2024  

Council workshop to discuss draft Annual Plan  Nov 2024 
Date to be 
confirmed 

Community board meetings - recommend variances and rates to Council 
3 to 17 Dec 
2024  

Council meeting to receive the draft local and district budgets for Annual Plan 
2025/2026 29 Jan 2025  

Finance and Assurance Committee to recommend adoption of consultation 
document (if required) 12 Feb 2025 

Change of 
meeting 
date 

Council meeting to consider and adopt budgets (and consultation document if 
required) 19 Feb 2025 

Change of 
meeting 
date 

Public consultation (if required) 
06 March to  
07 April 2025 

 

Council to hear annual plan submissions and deliberations (if required) 
15 and 16 
April 

Two days if 
required  

7 November to 
26 November 

2024

Direction 
setting 
workshops 
with 
community 
boards

3 to 17 
December  

2024

Community board 
direction setting 
meetings -
recommend variances 
and rates to Council

January/ 
February 2025

Council meeting -
adopt all budgets 
(and consultation 
document if 
required)

March/April 
2025

Public 
consultation 
(if required)

April 2025
Hearings and 

deliberations (if 
required)

Adoption June 
2025 
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KEY MILESTONE DATE NOTES 

Council workshop or Finance and Assurance Committee meeting – Draft plan 
for review 14 May 2025  

Finance and Assurance meeting to recommend adoption of Annual Plan  11 June 2025  

Council meeting - Adoption Annual Plan 25 June 2025  

Issues 

Consultation 

13 The Local Government Authority (LGA) requires the community to be formally consulted if 
there are significant or material differences from the content of the Long Term Plan. It has still 
not been determined whether this threshold will be met by the proposed variations and therefore 
time for formal consultation has been included in the attached project plan. 

14 Should there be no significant or material differences from year two of LTP 34, following LGA 
guidance Council can provide information on the Annual Plan to the public rather than running a 
consultation process. 

Factors to consider 

Legal and statutory requirements 

15 Pursuant to section 95 of the LGA, Council is required to prepare and adopt an Annual Plan for 
each financial year. Each Annual Plan must be adopted before the commencement of the financial 
year to which it relates. 

Community views 

16 Council is required in the course of its decision-making process to give consideration to the views 
and preferences of persons likely to be affected by this matter. Council should therefore consider 
the views of their community boards areas around the proposed budgeting processes. 

Costs and funding 

17 All costs associated with the Annual Plan 2025/2026 are factored into existing budgets. 

Policy Implications 

18 At this stage it is not anticipated that any policies will be amended as part of the Annual Plan 
planning process. 

Analysis 

Options considered 

19 There are two options to consider in relation to the report. 
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Analysis of options 

Option 1 – Council approve the Annual Plan timetable as noted above 

Advantages  Disadvantages  

• staff can proceed with the work required for 
the document as planned 

• provides a streamlined annual plan process 
• complies with statutory requirements for 

Council to complete an Annual Plan. 

• there are no disadvantages. 

 

Option 2 – Council approve the Annual Plan timetable with amendments 

Advantages  Disadvantages  

• councillors are able to recommend necessary 
changes to the key dates timetable to ensure 
delivery of the Annual Plan. 

• there are no disadvantages. 

Assessment of significance 

20 The matter before the committee is not considered significant in regards to Councils Significance 
and Engagement Policy. 

Recommended option 

21 The recommended option is Option 1, Council approve the Annual Plan timetable as noted 
above. 

Next steps 

22 If the project timetable key dates are approved, staff will continue with the delivery of the Annual 
Plan 2025/2026 as per the timetable. 
 

Attachments 
There are no attachments for this report.    
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Draft Accounting Policies for the 2025/2026 Annual Plan 
Record No: R/24/10/63659 
Author: Teresa Morgan, Financial accountant  
Approved by: Anne Robson, Group manager finance and assurance  
 
☐  Decision ☒  Recommendation ☐  Information 
 

   

 

Purpose 
1 To discuss and endorse the draft accounting policies to be used to compile the 2025/2026 

Annual plan, which will be adopted in June 2025. 

Executive Summary 
2 The accounting policies (Attachment A) set the basis on which the financial information for the 

2025/2026 Annual plan will be compiled. 

3 In drafting these, staff reviewed the accounting policies for the 2023/2024 Annual report and the 
2024-2034 Long Term Plan (LTP) and are recommending the LTP accounting policies updated 
with changes from the annual report be used as the basis for the 2025/2026 Annual plan. 

4 The accounting policies will be adopted by Council as part of the 2025/2026 Annual plan 
process. 
 

Recommendation 
That the Finance and Assurance Committee: 

a) receives the report titled “Draft Accounting Policies for the 2025/2026 Annual 
Plan” dated 11 October 2024. 
 

b) determines that this matter or decision be recognised as not significant in terms of 
Section 76 of the Local Government Act 2002. 
 

c) determines that it has complied with the decision-making provisions of the Local 
Government Act 2002 to the extent necessary in relation to this decision; and in 
accordance with Section 79 of the Act determines that it does not require further 
information, further assessment of options or further analysis of costs and benefits 
or advantages and disadvantages prior to making a decision on this matter. 
 

d) endorses the accounting policies detailed in Attachment A (of the officer’s report) 
for use in the 2025/2026 Annual plan. 

 

Background 

5 All councils are required by legislation to adopt an Annual plan. The Annual plan sets out 
Council’s activities, plans, budgets and policies and must be adopted before the beginning of the 
year to which it relates. 
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6 In considering the appropriate accounting policies to be used for the Annual plan it is deemed 
appropriate to use as a starting point those adopted by Council as part of the LTP given that 
these financial statements include prospective financial information. Staff have also reviewed the 
2023/2024 Annual report accounting policies, and have updated the 2025/2026 annual plan 
policies for any relevant changes to accounting standards. 

(i) Issues 

7 The attached recommended policies are consistent with the LTP, updated for changes in the 
2023/2024 annual report and there are no further expected changes to accounting policies 
identified at the time of this report. 

Factors to Consider 

Legal and Statutory Requirements 

8 Section 93 of the Local Government Act 2002 requires the Council to prepare and adopt an 
Annual plan for each financial year. Each Annual plan should also be prepared in accordance 
with the principles and procedures that apply to the preparation of the financial statements and 
funding impact statements included in the LTP. 

9 Section 111 of the Local Government Act states that any information to be prepared must be in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practice where the information is of a form or 
nature for which generally accepted accounting practice has developed standards, however this 
do not apply to the preparation of a funding impact statement. 

10 The accounting polices form the basis on which the prospective financial information is 
prepared, and thus it is considered appropriate that these be included in the Annual plan. 

Community Views 

11 No specific community views have been sought.  The community would expect Council to 
comply with its legal and statutory regulations including accounting standards. 

Costs and Funding 

12 There are no direct cost implications of Council adopting the accounting policies for the 
2025/2026 Annual plan. 

Policy Implications 

13 Council has, by way of the terms of reference for the Finance and Assurance Committee (refer 
section 8.4.1 of the Delegations Manual), delegated responsibility to the committee to consider 
and make recommendations to Council in regards to accounting treatments, changes in generally 
accepted accounting practice, and new accounting and reporting requirements. 
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Analysis 

Options Considered 

Analysis of Options 

Option 1 – Endorse the accounting policies with any amendments from this meeting for use 
in preparation of the 2025/2026 Annual plan. 

Advantages  Disadvantages  

• policies are consistent with the 2024-2034 
LTP and the 2023/2024 Annual report 

• simplified more efficient approach 
• The annual plan can continue to be 

prepared in line with the planned timetable. 

• None identified. 

 

Option 2 – Do not recommend the accounting policies as presented 

Advantages  Disadvantages  

• changes can be made to the accounting 
policies post the meeting to incorporate the 
committee’s views. 

• The Annual plan process may be delayed 
depending on the time needed to provide 
the necessary information.  Don’t expect 
this too be a high risk. 

Assessment of Significance 

14 In terms of Council’s Significance and Engagement Policy, the accounting policies which form 
part of the Annual plan are not considered significant. 

Recommended Option 

15 Option one - endorse the accounting policies with any amendments from this meeting for use in 
preparation of the 2025/2026 Annual plan. 

Next Steps 

16 The accounting policies (incorporating any changes agreed at this meeting) will be used in 
preparation of the 2025/2026 Annual plan. 
 

Attachments 
A  Draft accounting policies      
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Changes to Significant Forecasting Assumptions for the 
Annual Plan 2025-2026 
Record No: R/24/10/62547 
Author: Robyn Laidlaw, Corporate performance lead  
Approved by: Anne Robson, Group manager finance and assurance  
 
☐  Decision ☒  Recommendation ☐  Information 
 

   

 

Purpose 
1 To review and recommend to Council the changes to the significant forecasting assumptions 

from the 2024-34 Long Term Plan to be used to support the Annual Plan 2025/2026, which will 
be adopted in June 2025. 

Executive Summary 
2 In developing the Annual plan 2025/2026 a number of assumptions need to be made in regard to 

the future in order to develop the financial forecasts. 

3 The Assumptions adopted as part of LTP 34 are the base for the annual plan and have been 
reviewed to consider any significant differences. 

4 No changes are proposed to the financial assumptions adopted as part of the LTP 34 apart from 
those noted below.   

• The current interest rates on borrowings is 5.67%. The Councils current effective interest 
rate based on $77.5m stock of LGFA debt as at 10 October is 4.91%.  

• The return on investments, currently has a return on a 50/50 split between income and 
growth assets. To reflect the current portfolio, this needs to change to 60/40 split between 
income and growth assets.  Council has previously been conservative in its return from its 
balanced funds at 4.4% after fees.  It is not proposed to make any change to this. 

• Forestry assets, will be based on the latest forest management and harvest plan. 

• The emissions trading scheme will be held at the quantity and value as at the 30 June 2024 
being 113,231units at a unit price of $50.50. 

 
5 The non-financial assumptions have been reviewed. Relevant wording changes will be made to 

the LTP 34 assumptions where legislative references have since been updated or to make it 
relevant to the one year of this Annual Plan rather than the 10 years of the LTP.  Examples 
include updates to the waters reform assumption noting changes like the Local waters done well 
framework.   

6 The changes adopted at this meeting will be made to the 2024-34 Long Term Plan assumptions 
to form the 2025-26 Annual Plan significant forecasting assumptions table, for recommendation 
to Council to adopt as part of the Annual Plan 2025/2026. 
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7 The significant assumptions can still be amended and/or updated up until the Annual Plan is 
adopted in June 2025. 
 

Recommendation 

That the Finance and Assurance Committee: 

a) receives the report titled “Changes to Significant Forecasting Assumptions for the 
Annual Plan 2025-2026” dated 06 September 2023. 

b) determines that this matter or decision be recognised as not significant in terms of 
Section 76 of the Local Government Act 2002. 

c) determines that it has complied with the decision-making provisions of the Local 
Government Act 2002 to the extent necessary in relation to this decision; and in 
accordance with Section 79 of the Act determines that it does not require further 
information, further assessment of options or further analysis of costs and benefits 
or advantages and disadvantages prior to making a decision on this matter. 

d) endorses the following changes to the 2024-34 Long Term Plan assumptions 

- interest on borrowings at 4.91% 

- forestry assets, will be based on the latest forest management and harvest 
plan. 

- the emissions trading scheme will be held at the quantity and value as at the 
30 June 2024 

e) endorses other relevant wording changes to the 2024-34 Long Term Plan 
assumptions to enable relevance to this 2025-26 Annual Plan 

f) notes that any new information arising between now and the adoption of the 
Annual Plan 2025-2026 that may impact the significant forecasting assumptions 
noted in Attachment A will be presented to the Committee and Council for 
consideration and endorsement  

 

Background 

8 All councils are required by legislation to adopt an Annual Plan. The annual plan sets out 
Council’s activities, projects and budgets for the year from 1 July 2025 to 30 June 2026 and 
updates the information in year two of LTP 34.  

9 As such, it is appropriate that the significant forecasting assumptions for the Annual Plan are 
based on the assumptions adopted as part of the LTP, updated as necessary for any relevant 
changes deemed appropriate. 

10 To assist the Council, staff prepare this report and outline for their consideration and review any 
recommendations for change and make comment on any areas they believe the Council needs to 
be aware of. 
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Issues 

Significant forecasting assumptions 

11 Significant forecasting assumptions are the building blocks of LTP strategies, policies and activity 
management plans and provide a baseline to develop plans for long term planning. 

12 In preparing forecasts, both financial and non-financial, assumptions can address uncertainties of 
the future. This provides an understanding of the basis from which financial information has 
been prepared, a way to explain differences that will likely occur between actual results and what 
was forecast and ensuring that risks and challenges faced by Council in the future have been 
appropriately identified and assessed. 

13 Using the wellbeing scan as the basis of the significant forecasting assumptions, staff used the 
same formatted headings of legislation, social, cultural, environment, emerging technologies, 
economic and financial headings with related subheadings. 

14 Council adopted the significant forecasting assumptions for LTP 34, at its 6 September 2023 
meeting. 

15 No changes are proposed to the financial assumptions adopted as part of the LTP 34 apart from 
those noted below.   

• The current interest rates on borrowings is 5.67%. The Councils current effective interest 
rate based on $77.5m stock of LGFA debt as at 10 October is 4.91%.  

• The return on investments, currently has a return on a 50/50 split between income and 
growth assets. To reflect the current portfolio, this needs to change to 60/40 split between 
income and growth assets.  

• Forestry assets, will be based on the latest forest management and harvest plan. 

• The emissions trading scheme will be held at the quantity and value as at the 30 June 2024 
being 113,231units at a unit price of $50.50. 

 
16 Council has previously been conservative in its return from its balanced funds at 4.4% after fees.  

It is not proposed to make any change to this however Council could consider making a change. 

17 At this stage no changes have been made to the BERL inflation rates that are used to calculate 
the increase to Councils infrastructure assets and to derive a number of base costs. 

18 The non-financial assumptions have been reviewed. Relevant wording changes will be made to 
the LTP 34 assumptions where legislative references have since been updated or to make it 
relevant to the one year of this Annual Plan rather than the 10 years of the LTP.  Examples 
include updates to the waters reform assumption noting changes like the Local waters done well 
framework.   

19 The 2023 Census data that has been released has been reviewed.  The population indicated in this 
is in line with that indicated in the LTP 34 assumptions.  So no changes are proposed. 
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Factors to consider 

Legal and statutory requirements 

20 Section 95 of the Local Government Act 2002 requires the Council to prepare and adopt an 
Annual Plan for each financial year. Each annual plan should also be prepared in accordance with 
the principles and procedures that apply to the preparation of the financial statements and 
funding impact statement included in the LTP. 

21 Section 111 of the Local Government Act states that any information to be prepared must be in 
accordance with generally accounting practice where the information is of a form or nature for 
which generally accepted accounting practice has developed standards. 

Community views 

Costs and funding 

22 There is no cost associated with deriving the Annual Plan assumptions. 

23 The change to the interest rate on borrowing assumption will have financial implications on the 
2025-26 Annual Plan.  The impact on rating will vary across the activities depending on funding 
sources. 

Policy implications 

24 The significant forecasting assumptions create the building blocks that are used in the preparation 
of the Annual Plan. 

25 Significant forecasting assumptions are also incorporated into the development of the activity 
management plans so that consistency is applied across Council in consideration to the future 
delivery of Council activities and how they will be managed. 

Analysis 

Options considered 

Analysis of options 

Option 1 – Recommends to Council the changes to the 2024-34 Long Term Plan assumptions, 
including any amendments from this meeting, for use in the preparation of the Annual Plan 
2025/2026. 

Advantages  Disadvantages  

• Staff can proceed with certainty as to the 
assumptions on which to base the Annual 
Plan 2025/2026 

• the Annual Plan 2025/2026 can continue to 
be prepared in line with the planned 
timetable. 

• risk of change in assumptions and flow on 
impact to financial forecasts and rates. 
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Option 2 – Do not recommend the assumptions as presented 

Advantages  Disadvantages  

• changes can be made to the assumptions to 
incorporate the Council’s views. 

• more complex approach for potentially 
minimal benefit 

• the Annual Plan process may be delayed 
depending on the time needed to provide 
the necessary information. 

Assessment of significance 

26 In terms of Council’s Significance and Engagement Policy, the assumptions which form part of 
the Annual Plan are not considered significant. 

Recommended option 

27 Option 1 – Recommends to Council the changes to the 2024-34 Long Term Plan assumptions, 
including any amendments from this meeting, for use in the preparation of the Annual Plan 
2025/2026. 

Next steps 

28 The assumptions (incorporating any changes agreed at this meeting) will be used in preparation 
of the Annual Plan 2025/2026. 
 

Attachments 
There are no attachments for this report.  
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